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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of CL Educate Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of CL Educate Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matter(s) described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Revenue recognition (Refer note 2(B)(iii) and
note 33 to the accompanying Standalone
financial statements)

We refer to the Company's Material accounting
policies in note 2(B)(iii) and the revenue related
disclosures in note 33 of the Standalone financial
statements.

Revenue is a key business driver and has significant
impact on the financial statements of the Company
and is therefore, susceptible to misstatement.

Revenue recognition under Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue
from contracts with customers’ (Ind AS 115"
involves significant judgement by the management
in identification of separate performance obligations
in contracts with multiple performance obligations,
determining transaction price in view of discount
offered to the customers, allocation of such
transaction price to the identified performance
obligations to ensure the revenue is booked in
correct periods.

With respect to revenue recognition from fixed price
contracts, the revenue is recognised in Statement of
profit and loss over the period of the contract in
proportion to the stage of completion of the service
at reporting date.

Considering various types of revenue generating
activities of the Company, significant volume of
transactions, the materiality of amounts involved,
and significant judgements involved as mentioned
above, revenue recognition was identified as a key
audit matter for the current year audit.

Our audit procedures included but not limited
to the following:

« Assessed the appropriateness of the
Company's revenue recognition policy in
accordance with Ind AS 115 including
evaluation of management's assessment of
performance obligations determined to be
satisfied over a period of time and at a point of
time and related method of measuring
progress towards complete satisfaction of
such performance obligation.

» Obtained understanding of the revenue
recognition pracess and evaluated the design,
and tested the operating effectiveness of key
controls implemented by the Company in
relation to revenue recognition including
discounts.

» Performed test of details for samples
selected from revenue transactions recorded
during the year, and during a specific period
before and after year end, by inspecting
invoices and other related supporting
documents for such samples. to ensure
revenue has been recorded as per the
accounting policy of the Company for such
samples in the correct period with correct
amounts,

* Performed analytical procedures which
included review of price, quantity and
discounts variances and month-ta-month ratio
analysis based on customer level and
company level data.

+ Evaluated the adequacy and accuracy of
relevant disclosures made in the Standalone
financial statements in accordance with Ind
AS 115.

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

Loss allowance for Trade Receivables (Refer
Note 2(B)(iii) and Note 15 to the accompanying
Standalone financial statements)

The Company has trade receivables of ¥ 6,587.48
lacs as at 31 March 2024 (net of impairment of
238.00 lacs). During the year, the Company has
recorded a charge of ¥ 1,179.52 lacs towards bad
debts for such trade receivables.

Owing to the nature of the operations of the
Company and related customer profiles, the
Company has significant long standing trade
receivable balances, for which appropriate loss
allowance is required to be created for expected
credit losses wusing simplified approach in
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109,
Financial Instruments, measuring the loss allowance
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

For the purpose of expected credit loss assessment
of trade receivables, significant judgement is
required by the management to estimate the timing
and amount of realisation of these receivables basis
the past history, customer profiles and consideration
of other internal and external sources of information.

Considering the significant judgement involved, high
estimation uncertainty and materiality of the amounts
involved, we have identified loss allowance on trade
receivables as a key audit matter for the current year
audit.

Our audit procedures included but not
limited to the following:

*» Understanding the trade receivables process
and evaluating design and testing the
operating effectiveness of control with regards
to valuation of trade receivables.

+ Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade
receivables at year end on sample basis.

» Obtained a list of outstanding trade
receivables, identified significant long
outstanding receivables, and discussed plan
of recovery with the management.

» Circularised balance confirmations to a
sample of trade receivables and reviewed the
reconciling items, if any.

+ Verified the appropriateness of
management judgement with respect to
measurement of ECL provision for trade
receivables in accordance with Ind As 109.

e Tested subsequent settlement of trade
receivables after the balance sheet date on a
sample basis, as applicable.

« Verified the related disclosures made in
notes to the standalone financial statements in
| accordance with Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 109.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Charfersd Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting palicies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. and

. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contral that we identify during our audit.

. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasanably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of daing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

. Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone
financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
17(h)(vi) below on reparting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended).

c) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

Chartered Accountanis
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the

g)

h)

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 17(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 17(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure Il wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

the Company, as detailed in note 45 (B) to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed
the impact of pending litigation(s) on its financial position as at 31 March 2024.

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.

iv.  a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as

V.

Chartered Accountanis

disclosed in note 53(A)(v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the
Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 55(A)(vi) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide
any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024,
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Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate Limited, on the
standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

vi.  As stated in Note 61 to the standalone financial statements and based on our examination
which included test checks, except for instances mentioned below, the Company, in respect of
financial year commencing on 1 April 2023, have used accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with, other than the consequential impact of the exception given below.

Nature of exception noted Details of Exception

Instances of accounting software for
maintaining books of account for which the
feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility was not operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded

The audit trail feature was not enabled at
database level for accounting software
Microsoft Dynamics Navision and CL Zone
(used for recording of invoices), to log any
direct data changes, used for maintenance

in the software of all accounting records by the Company.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
N \mﬁ
34«4.1/,\

Neeraj Goel

Partner

Membership No.: 099514
UDIN: 24099514BKCMVD7774

Place: New Delhi
Date: 08 May 2024
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Annexure | referred to in paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of CL Educate Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the baoks of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

() (a)

(b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, investment property and
relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment, investment property and relevant details of right-of-use assets under which the
assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which in
our apinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment
investment property and relevant details of right-of-use assets were verified during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (including investment properties) held by

the Company (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee),disclosed in Note 46 to the
standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d)The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use

assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any

benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in Note 27 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been

sanctioned a working capital limit in excess of Rs. 500 Lacs by banks based on the security
of current assets. The quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital limits have
been filed by the Company with such banks and such statements are in agreement with
the books of account of the Company for the respective periods which were subject to
audit/review, except for the following:

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of CL Educate Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 (Cont’d)

Name of | Working | Nature of | Quarte | Informati | Information | Differen | Remarks/reas |
the Bank / | capital current r on as per | ce on, if any '
financial limit assets disclose | books of
institutio | sanction | offered as d as per | accounts
n ed security return
Indusind 1,850 Pari-passu 30 8,666.53 | 8,649.33 (82.80) | The variance is
Bank charge on | June majorly on
Limited current assets | 2023 account of
advance
received from
customer which
is being
adjusted
against
receivables in
the books of
accounts and
expected credit
loss allowance
which is not
being
considered in
the stock
statement
| submitted to
L | bank. N
Indusind 1,850 Pari-passu 30 9,191.30 9,278.43 (87.13) The variance is
Bank charge on | Septe majorly on
Limited current assets | mber account of
2023 advance
received from
customer which
is being
adjusted
against
receivables in
the books of
accounts and
expected credit
loss allowance
which is not
being
considered in
the stock
statement
submitted to
bank.
Indusind 1,850 Pari-passu 31 8,481.99 | 8,892.90 (410.91) | The variance is
Bank charge on | Decem majorly on
Limited current assets | ber account of
2024 advance
received from
customer which
is being
adjusted
B against
_ *_Q}C‘HMD’O,%
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of CL Educate Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2024 (Cont’d)

receivables in
the books of
accounts and
expected credit
loss allowance
which is not

being
considered in
the stock
statement

submitted to
bank.

Indusind 1,850 Pari-passu 31 8,372.92 | 8,384.61 (11.69) | The variance is

Bank charge on | March majorly on

Limited current assets | 202 account of
advance

received from
customer which
is being
adjusted

against

receivables in
the books of
accounts and
expected credit
loss allowance
which is not

being
considered in
the stock
statement
submitted to
bank.

(iii) The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the year
Further, the Company has made investments in to companies during the year, in respect of

which :

Chartered Accountants

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company has not provided any loans or provided any advances in the nature
of loans, or guarantee, or security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clauses 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year. However, the Company
has made investment in 1 entity amounting to Rs. 79.00 lacs (year-end balance Rs.
720.02 Lacs) and in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, such investments made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company,
the schedule of repayment of principal and the payment of the interest has not been
stipulated and accordingly, we are unable to comment as to whether the
repayments/receipts of principal interest are regular.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of CL Educate Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 (Cont’d)

(v)

(vi)

(vi)(a)

Chartered Accountants

(d) In the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans, we are unable to
comment as to whether there is any amount which is overdue for more than 90
days. Reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of such
principal amounts and interest.

(e) Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal
has not been stipulated. Further, no interest is receivable on such loans and
advances in the nature of loans. According to the information and explanation given
to us, such loans have not been demanded for repayment as on date.

(f) The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment, as per details below:

| Particulars [ All Parties Promoters Related Parties
B (¥ in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs) (Tin Lacs)
Aggregate of loans/advances in
nature of loan
- Repayable on demand (A) 57.45 Nil 57.45
Total (A) 57.45 Nil 57.45
Percentage of loans/advances in 40.53% Nil 40.53%

| nature of loan to the total loans

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of sections 185 of the Act. In our opinion, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not complied with the
provisions of section 186 of the Act. The details of the non-compliances are given below:

‘ S. Particulars Name of | Amount Balance as on | Remarks

No. Company/ involved (Rs.) | 31 March 2024

Party (Rs.)

3 Loan given at| ICE Gate Interest  free
rate of interest | Educational Nit 57.45 Lacs loan given
lower than | Institute

. prescribed | Private Limited - -

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of




Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of CL Educate Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 (Cont’d)

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the Nature of Gross Amount Period to which Forum where dispute is
Statute Dues Amount paid the amount pending
(Rs.In under relates
Lacs) Protest
(Rs.)

Finance Act, . Nil October 2010 to Commissioner of Service tax,

1994 Service Tax 166.36 September 2011 | New Delhi

Finance Act, . Nil October 2011 to Commissioner of Service tax,
| 1994 Service Tax 12553 June 2012 New Delhi

. Nil Central Excise and Service

Finance Act, . September 2004 to .

1994 Service Tax 46.49 March 2007 Ez)l(h?ppellate Tribunal, New

Finance Act, Service Tax Nil October 2007 to Commissioner of Service tax,

1994 15.69 March 2008 New Delhi

Finance Act, . Nil April 2008 to Commissioner of Service tax,

1994 Service Tax 400.97 March 2012 New Delhi

Finance Act, . Nil October 2016 to Commissioner of CGST Audit

1994 Service Tax 32285 June 2017 |, New Delhi

Gooc_is and Goods and Nil July 2017 to March | Directorate General of Goods

Service Tax . 1,281.29 .

Service Tax 2021 and Services Tax

Act, 2017

Goocjs and Goods and 98.66 | Nil Appeal before First

Service Tax Service Tax FY2017-18 Appellate Authorit

Act, 2017 PP y

Goods and 16.13 | Nil Additional/ Joint

Service Tax ggr?/?sea{"gx FY 2018-19 Commissioner

Act, 2017 (Appeals)

Goodsand | o4 and 565 | Ni Additional/ Joint

Service Tax Service Tax FY 2018-19 Commissioner (Appeals)

Act, 2017

Gooc_:ls and Goods and 3.95 | Nil Additional Commissioner

Service Tax Service Tax FY 2018-19 (Appeals)

Act, 2017 pp

g:r%?:ea{.’sx Googls and 6.53 ) Ni FY 2018-19 Appeal before F irst

Act, 2017 Service Tax Appellate Authority

Income Tax Nil Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax

Act, 1961 Income Tax 359.22 2013-14 (Appeals), New Delhi

Income Tax Nil Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax

Act, 1961 Income Tax | 1,161.87 2013-14 (Appeals), New Delhi

Income Tax Income Tax 141.71 | Nil Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax
| Act, 1961 2013-14 (Appeals), New Delhi

Income Tax Nil Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax

Act, 1961 Income Tax 168.42 2013-14 (Appeals). New Delhi

Income Tax Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax

Act, 1961 Income Tax 2013-14 (Appeals), New Delhi
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Income Tax Income Tax 14.33 Nil Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax
Act, 1961 ) 2013-14 (Appeals), New Delhi
Income Tax Nil | Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax
Act, 19671 Income Tax 7.48 2013-14 (Appeals), New Delhi
Income Tax Income Tax Nil Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax
Act, 1961 32.87 2013-14 (Appeals), New Delhi
Income Tax Nil Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax
Act, 1961 inecime hax 34.11 2017-18 (Appeals), New Delhi
Income Tax Nil Assessment Year . .

Act, 1961 Income Tax 243.93 2017-18 Appeal filed with CIT(A)
Income Tax Nil Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax
Act, 1961 Income Tax 361.24 2017-18 (Appeals), New Delhi
Income Tax Nil Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax
Act, 1961 Income Tax 20063 2017-18 (Appeals), New Delhi
Income Tax Income Tax 56.71 Nil Assessment Year Commissioner of Income tax
Act, 1961 ' | 2018-18 (Appeals), New Delhi

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and expianations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) According ta the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in subsidiaries.

(x) (@ The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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members of CL Educate Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
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(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii)y The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiiiy In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act .

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required
under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2018) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviiiy There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board
of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at th of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
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(xx)

of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has met the criteria as
specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net profits in the
immediately three preceding years, there is no requirement for the Company to spend any amount
under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone

financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registrat'DJn No.: 001076N/N500013

Neeraj Goel

Partner

Membership No.; 099514

UDIN : 24099514BKCMVD7774

Place: New Delhi
Date: 08 May 2024
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Annexure ||

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of CL Educate Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note an Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘lCAI') prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements .

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
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policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Nee w;‘éw_i.

Neeraj Goel

Partner

Membership No.: 099514
UDIN: 24099514BKCMVD7774

Place: New Delhi
Date: 08 May 2024

Charterad Accountants
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at Macch 31, 2024

1 W cnomints aie Rupees 57 laes, watdess whorn i dated)

Notes As at AS at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equirment 3 386,94 Sleoey
Riehir of use assets 4 1,019.59
Invvestment property A 276.90 262,60
Goeodwill 5 212,38 21238
COxcher intangable aesees D 1 045,25 3.100.61
Intangibles urder development 5 190.21 337.09
Fruancial assers
1 Investiments m subsidiaries and associate 9 3,480.i0 461707
0y Investnaents 9 443,00 Al
iy Odher financic] assers 16 LOBT .44 54
NOU-CULTerr EIN At SIS (NeT) 1l 1,746,12
Deterred tax as.cts ‘ner) 12 1,230.25
(that non -cucrent assets 13 -
Total non-curent assets _1:5,-915.37
Currcnt assets
Inventories Fot 1,547.44 1480
Financil assers
(i) Trade recevables 13 6,387.48 6,230
I Cosh and cash equivalents le 1,969.8% THi.9Z
(i Biank balunzes other than (i} above 15 6,138.19 3u55,7C
/iv) Loans 18 141.75 4043
) Oxther finanzial assets 19 1,978.46
Orher current assets 20 2,745.97
Total current assets 21,1098 1751663
Total assets 37,024.:’;5
Eguin and Hubilities
Luguliv ~hare capita 21 2.702.62 275342
Coher oquity 22 24,0480.31
Total equity 26,792.93

Contssitd 7 i




CL Educate Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(A camounts are Rupees in lacs, untess atherwive stuted)

(Contisued from previous page)

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics

(i) Borrowings

(1) .case liability
Provisions
Other non-current liabilitics

Total non-current liabilities

Current labilities
Financial liabilitics
) Borrowings
(i) Lense liability
1) Teade payables
- total vutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterpriscs
(v Other financial labilities
Other carrent liabilitics

Provistons
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Toral equity and Habilities

Susnmary of material accounting policics

Notes As at As at
¢ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
23 91.59 69.52
24 828.62 336.24
25 511.30 482.94
2 169.84 186 73
- 1,601.35 1,075.43
27 1,750.55 934.96
28 265.19 285.07
29
76.84 85.15
3,483.33 3,056.83
30 672.12 77975
31 2,253.99 2,077.94
32 128.25 7016
8,630.27 7,289.86
10,231.62 8,365.29
37,024.55 35,217.48

The accompanying notes ! to 63 are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

"This is standulone Balance Shect referred 1o 1n our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chaztered Accountants

[fiem's Registration T(L Q01076 /IN500013
<

hecroy
Neeray Goel

Partner

Mcmbership No.:(i99514

Place: Gurugram, THarvana
Date: May 08, 2024

Ior and on behalf of the Board ol Directors of
CL Educate Limited

Nikhil Mahaji

.'/I
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I}

Lixecutive Dircctor and CRO Linterprise

Business
[ 00033404

/

Rachna Sharma

Company Sceretary

Gautam Puri

Viee Chairman and
Managing Director
DIN: 00033548

AL Mo>=

and Compliance Officer

TCST M. No.s A17780

Place: New Delbi
Darte: May 08, 2024

New Delhi
110044

Arjun Wadhwa

Chief Financial Officer




CL Educate Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(o Vit ammounts are Rupees in lucs, sndecs othernive stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Incomes
Revenue from operations 33 29.196.68 27 289.09
Other income 34 1,200.24 671.23
Total income 30,396.92 27,966.32
Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 35 1,766.83 1,683.43
Changes in inventories of finished goods 36 (86.10) (41.20)
Employee benefit expense 37 4301.90 $,164.18
[inance costs 38 238.67 156.97
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 39 1,172352 329.32
Service delivery expenses 40 15,871.35 15,054.11
Sales and markcting expenses 41 2,304.47 2,077.29
Otther expenses 42 3,536.26 2,572.02
Total expenses 29,105.90 26,596.12
Profit before exceptional items and tax 1,291.02 1,364.20
Fxeoptional iems 43 51.27 (42.65)
Profit before tax after exceptional items 1,342.29 1,321.55
Tax expense/{benefit) 56
- Cnrreat lax 257.25 302.45
- Deterred tax 121.33 (311.65;
- Previous vear tax 3.34 -
Total tax expense 375.24 (9.20)
Profit for the year 967.05 1,330.75
Other comprehensive income
hiems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Remesurement of defined benefit plans 47 6.84 {3.48,
Tricome fan relating to these items 36 (1.80) 0.94
Other comprehensive income for the vear 5.04 (2.94)
Total comprehensive income for the year 972.09 1,327.81
Earnings per equity share in Rs. H

Basic L.77 241

Ditared 1.76 24
Sumary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanving notes 1 to 63 arc an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
‘Thie is standalone statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
liirm's Registration V] OOTO76N /N500013

N 24
Neeraj Goel

Partner
Membership No.:099514

NI

[For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CL Educate Limited

Nikhil Ma

Gautam Puri

* '
/ e A
_AJ/\;?* A —F et
.. — ( P -
|

Exceuive Director and CEO Lnterprise Vice Chairman and

Business

Managing irector
DIN: 00033548

Arjun Wadhwa
Chief Financial Officer

DINI0033404

Rachna Sharma

Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer
[CST ML No: A17780

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: May 08, 2024

New Delhi
110044

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 08, 2024




CL Educate Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the vear ended Macch 31, 2024

(M amronnt are Ropeer i facs, unbess vhhermise statedy

Particulars ] Year ended
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2025 |
| Audited ~ Audited
'A.| Cash flow from operating activities ) o i =
i Nert Profit before tax: N - - l,SW- 1,321 .55_:
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortization cxpense 1,172,532 929,32
Guain on sale of properey, plant and equipment {60 2412818
Toans and advances written off [,214.60
Loss on sale of investments 56%8.69
Property, plant and equipment discarded 1499
Reeeivables writen off | 36118
{Reversal of impairment of investment in subsidiaey)/ provision for impairment of tnvestments i subsidian SL2T 296.00
Provision for slow-moving inventor: - 10,001
Finance costs 238.67 156.97
Advances written off 19.61 1R.65
Renal income on investment properny J18.00) 18005
Hmplovee share-based payment expense 2747 35.00
Fiabititics no longer requited written back (1495 (H2.88)
Unwinding of interest on seeurity deposits 15,09, {1651}
Unrealised foreign ¢xchange gam (nety (15.4:8) BSOS
Grain o sale of nvestment in oiral futads rAm
Inrerest income (669.21); SGTen
Gain on lease modification (36,07, - i
Fxpected credit loss and bad debts written off 1,218.76 491,12
Opcmri'ng profit before working capital changes 3,039.76 2,364.62
Moverients in working capital
- /Increasc in trade receivables 249812
- iIncrease’ ininventories 65.96) 163.35)
- Deerease in loans 32770 823.10 |
- dnerease)/Decrease in financial assets (242.73) 258,43
Beerease/{Increase) in current and non-current assets LH) 0T
| - Increase in niher current and non-currenc liabilitics 139.14 29877
| - lavrzase/Meere sel in tead. pavables 37466 71508 |
fnerease ! Deereasc: i prosisions K645 5145
‘Decrease;; Inc ease w carrent and non-cureent finaacial liabilides (163.80; 424.69
Cash Generated from operations 1,910.75 - 1,967.55
Add: Teome tax paid (net of cefunds) (81.89; (T22.04;
Net Carh generated fiom operating activities (A) o o — o 1,828.86 | 1,744.91
B.| Cashflow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, intangible under development (1,650.99 20200 34
fincluding capital advances and capital creditors)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and cquipment 27.84 5056 %)
Sale of investments - 2000
Proceeds from redemption of investments in preference share in subsidiary - 1,175.32
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries and associates (YoM -
Sale “purchase) of invesaments in mutual funds - 4,077.86
Invesrtnents in bank deposits 2,319.60) 871691
Maturity of bank deposits 1,594.36
Interest received 176.07
Rental income on investment property . | 18,00 |
| Net Cash generated from Investing Activities (}i_) = o [ o 1,211.21

A anrinned by mext page

‘New Dehi Y=t
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CL Educate Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Ul st are Rugpees in bacs, tombess ofhernize Stated)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Audited Audited

(Continned Jrom previons page)

C. | Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) of borrowings (net) (refer note 27) 838.12 (671.26)
Proceeds from issuc of shares on cxercise of stock options 423
Buy back of equity shares (841.5G) (9601.4i1)
Buy back tax paid (169.01) (202.03)
Payment of lease liabilities (refer note 27 and 46) (386.87) (289.48)
Interest paid (126.51) (105.66)
Net Cash (used in) Financing Activities (C) (681.60) (2,228.44)
Net increase/(decrease)in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,267.97 227.68
Balance at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 701.92 474.25
Balance at the end of the vear 1,969.89 701.93
Notes to cash flow statement

(i) |Components of cash and cash equivalent
Balances with baaks

| on curtent accouns 455.24 +50.45
Deposits with original maturitics with less than 3 months L400.10
Cash on hand 11433 25147
| 1,969.89 701.92

(1) The above standalone Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method” as set out in the Iad AS-Ton™

the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable.

(iii) The ubove standalone statemenr of <ash flows shoald be read i conjunction with the accompanying notes 1 to 63.

Cash Flow Statements” specified under Section 133 of

Sumimar of material accounting policics 2

This 1+ sandalone statement of Cash Flow teforeed o in our ceport of even dare.

For Waiker Chandiok & Co LLP F'orand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered .\ccountants CL Educate Limited

Firm's Registration No. AT076N/N30001%

N ~
Neeraj Goel

Tartner
Membership No.:099314

I 1 oin
N._L.-_,ﬁw\& LA f’ v
Nikhil Mahajan

Execurive Difector| ind CEO Enterprise
Busigess )

Place: Gurugram, Harvana Rachna Sharma

Dater Mar 08, 2024 Company Scceetary and Compliance Officer

1CST M. No.: 17780

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 08, 2024

Gautam Puri
Vice Chairman and Managing Dircctor
DIN: 00033548

Arjun Wadhwa
Chicf Financial Officer




CL Educate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and explanatory information on the Standalone Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Corporate Information

CL Educate Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Company domiciled in India, with its registered and corporate office
at A-45, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Area, Mathura Road, New Delhi - 110044, The Company was
incorpotated in India on April 25, 1996, to conduct various educational and consulting programmes. The
Company is providing education and test preparation training programmes which includes tuitions to school
students and coaching to aspirants for a variety of entrance examinations both at the school and graduate /
post graduate levels.

The Company’s equity shares are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock
Hxchange (NSE) in India.

The Standalone Financials Statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May
08, 2024.

2. (A) General Information and compliance with Ind AS

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standartds (hereinafter refetred to as the ‘Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(‘MCA’) under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(B) Material accounting policies
(i) Basis of preparation:

These Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) and comply with requirements of Ind AS notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time, stipulation contained in Schedule TIT (Revised) and other
pronouncements/ provisions of applicable laws and the guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board
of India, to the extent applicable.

These Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and
measurement basis summarised below. These accounting policies have been used consistently applied
throughout all periods presented in these standalone financial statements, unless stated otherwise

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

i. Derivative financial instruments;

ii. Cernin financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments);

11, Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; and

v, Share based payments.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on curtent/non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

i Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

1il, Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to septe a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.




CL Educate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and explanatory information on the Standalone Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

il. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iii. It is due to be scttled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and its tealisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

The Standalone financial statements of the Company have been presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is
also its functional currency and all amounts disclosed in the standalone financial statements and notes have
been rounded off to the neatest lacs as per the requirement of Schedule III to the Act, unless otherwise
stated.

(i)  Fair value measurements

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be received to sell
an asset of paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between independent market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly ot indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to thc fair value measurement
is unobservable.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value on
a recurting basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurted between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.
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Revenue

Revenue 1s recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount
that reflect the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those product or services
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of
any taxes/duties and discounts.

The Company carns revenue from Educational and training business, sales of text books and integrated
marketing and management setvices.

Revenue from services

Revenue in respect of educational and training programme received from students is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss over the service period in proportion to the stage of completion of the services
at the reporting datc. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the curriculum. Fee is recorded at
invoice value, net of discounts and taxes, if any. The revenue from time and matetial contracts is recognised
at the amount to which the Company has right to invoice.

If the services rendered by the Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payment
cxceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognised. Revenue from training is recognised over the
service period of delivery.

In case of EdTech segment, the Company offers to collect payment from its customers either on one time
basis at the beginning of the performance obligation or on instalment plan basis during the performance
obligation. In case of MarTech segment, the Company receives certain amount of payment upfront while the
remaining is collected over the completion of performance obligations.

Performance obligation:

The performance obligation provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as
at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these
amounts in revenue.

Revenue as an agent

The Company derives its revenue from event and managed manpowet services. When the Company
determines that the nature of its promise, is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. entity is the principal), then it recognises the revenue earned as the gross amount of
consideration. However, where the Company promise, is to arrange, for the customer to provide
goods/scrvices as an agent then revenue is recognised only to extent of commission/markup/charges earned
by it. In such cases the Company does not control the goods and services provided to a customer. The
indicators evaluated by the Company to conclude if it is an agent are the following:

(a) That another party is primarily responsible for fulfilling the contract;
(b) The Company does not have any inventory risk;

() The Company does not have discretion in establishing prices for the other party’s goods or services and,
therefore, the benefit that the Company can receive from those goods or services is limited;

(d) the Company’s consideration is in the form of a commission / service charge or markup; and

(¢) the Company is not exposed to credit risk for the amount receivable from a customer in exchange for the
other party’s goods or services. ;
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Revenue from sale of text books

Revenue from Sale of Textbooks is tecognized at the point of time upon transfer of control of promised
goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those goods i.e. when it is probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits associated
with the transaction and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized at the fair value
of the consideration received ot receivable, which is generally the contracted price, net of any taxes/duties
and discounts considering the impact of variable consideration.

Revenue is measuted based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses and price concessions, if any, as specitied in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

In case of test preparation services, sale of text books is recognised at the time of receipt of payment on
account of education and training progtam provided by the Company and is recorded net of discounts and
taxes, if any.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services (“performance obligations”)
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has received or expects to receive in
exchange for these products or services (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability,
revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

The customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment schedule. If the services rendered by the Company
exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payment exceed the services rendered, a contract

liability is recognised. Revenue from training is recognised over the period of delivery.

Contract Liabilities (Unearned Revenue)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
teceived consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed and
teceived or recovetable priot to the reporting date for services and such services ot part of such services are
to be performed after the reporting date are recorded as contract labilities as per the provisions of the Ind
AS-115.

Other operating income

Revenue in respect of start-up fees from franchisees is recognised on performing a contractually agreed

assignment over a period of time, whether during a single period or over more than one period as per agreed

terms of the franchise agreement.

Revenue from commission from Universities in India or abroad is recognised on accrual basis.

Income from advertising is tecognised on stage of completion basis as per the terms of the agreement
Contract Balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c. only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Impatrment of Trade Recezvable

The Company measutes the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) associated with its assets based on historical
trends, industry pracnces and the general business environment in which ir-operates. The impairment
methodology ap nends on whether there has been a significant increasein ‘credit tisk. ECL impairment
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loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘other expenses'.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods ot services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed and
received or recoverable prior to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such services are
to be performed after the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilities as per the provisions of the Ind
AS-115 and shown in other current liabilities.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised as part of revenue from operations in the statement
of profit ot loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals ate structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation.

Interest income

Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futute cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross cartying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend

Dividend income 1s recognised in profit and loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

Other income
Other income other than above like tewards and recoveries are recognised on accrual basis.
Inventories

Inventoties comprising of traded goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost
of inventories is computed on weighted average basis formula.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on
an item-by-item basis.

Property, plant and equipment
Measurement at recognition:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost comptises the putrchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation ctiteria are met and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and
rebates ate deducted in arriving at the purchase price. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item witl flow 'to the entity; and
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b) the cost of the itern can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital wotk-in-progress. Cost of
construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and that are attributable to
construction activity in general are included in capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
if it increased the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. All other expenses on existing assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during
which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value over their useful life using straight line method and is recognised in the standalone statement of profit

and loss.

The estimated usetul lives of items of property, plant and equipment fot the current and comparative periods
are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule IT of the Act.

Property, plant and equipment

Useful lives (in years)

Building | 60
| Furniture and fixtures 8-10
| Plant and machinety 15 - B
!__Oiﬁce equipment - 5
| Vehice ' | 8-10
| Comr_utcr eqyuipment B 3 B
|_ Computer servers and networks 6

Leasehold improvements | Lesser of 3 years or period of lease |

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is

provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may
be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if
any, are accounted for prospectively.

The tresidual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Reclassification to investment propertv

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment propetty, the propetty is reclassified
as investment property at its catrying amount on the date of reclassification.

Capital Advances

Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstariding at €ach reporting date is
classified as capital advances,
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Derecognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds or amount of
security deposit adjusted and the catrying amount of the asset) is included in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment propertics are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The Company depreciates building component of investment propetty over 60 years from the date of original
purchase on straight line basis in accordance with Schedule II to the Act.

Though the Company measures investment propetty using cost-based measurement, the fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair valuc is determined by an independent valuer who holds
a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the televant location and
category of the investment property being valued. Investment properties ate derecognised either when they
have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cartying amount of
the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derccogniton. In determining the amount of
consideration from the derecognition of investment property the Company considers the effects of variable
consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration
payable to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amottised ovet the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortsation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of furure
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the standalone statement of
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of cartying value of another asset.

The reassessed useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets Useful Life (in
_ | years)

| Brand - - 10

Software B - B -

. Content development 7

| Intellectual property richts e : = | 5-15
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| Melting POT 10

QM 10 R
Aspiration AL 10

| Online Video Content |5

| Wain Connect 10

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.c., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Development
expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be
measured reliably, the product ot process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits
are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use
or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses,

Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination the Company elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow
of tesources embodying economic benefits is not probable.

However, deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ and Ind AS 19
‘Employee Benefits’ respectively. When a liability assumed is recognised at the acquisition date, but the related
costs are not deducted in determining taxable profits until a later period, a deductible temporary difference
arises which results in a deferred tax asset. A deferred tax asset also arises when the fair value of an identifiable
asset acquired is less than its tax base.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accotrdance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
dare. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of Ind-AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind-AS 109, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate Ind-AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.




CL Educate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and explanatory information on the Standalone Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(ix)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities 2ssumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transterred, then the gain is recognised in (OCI and accumulated
in equity as capital reserve.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unic is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed off, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these citcumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed opetation and the pottion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting
is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement petiod, or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized
at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does
not exceed one yeat from the acquisition date.

Income taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect
of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income-tax Act, 1961 and rules thereunder. Current income tax assets and liabilities ate measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in OCI ot in
equity).

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity. Management petiodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with tespect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Defetred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their book bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax asscts are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsct if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT”) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the relevant members of the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each reporting period end and the adjusted based on circumstances
then prevailing.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-gencrating
unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account.

If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded Company’s or other available
fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
pany P g
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
g 8 ¥ p ¥ ger p )
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. T'o estimate cash flow
projections beyond petiods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the (Company extrapolates cash
flow projections i _the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for<ubsequent fears, unless an
proj g g } g 8f 4 )
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increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in
which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the standalone statement of profit
and loss.

An assessment is made at cach reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the cartying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the standalone statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case,
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Tnitial recopnition and measurenient

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVIPL”), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Sutbsequent measnrement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost where the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and contractual terms of the asset give rise to
cash flows on specified dates that ate solely payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount of premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income in the standalone statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cashflows and for selling the financial assets, where the cash
flow represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCT”). The Company has not designated any financial asset in this category.

Financial asset included within the OCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. Interest income is recognized in statement of profit and
loss for debt instruments. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain ot loss previously recognized in
OCl is reclassified from OCI to statement of profit and loss.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Fair Value Through Profit ot Loss (“FVTPL.”) is a residual category for financial asset. Any financial asset,
which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measutrement ot recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL categoty ate measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the Standalone Statement of Profit and L.oss. The Company has not designated any financial asset in this
category.

Equity instruments

Equity investments in Subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairments, if any. All equity investments in
scope of Ind AS 109 are measuted at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent
consideration recognised by an acquiter in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 ‘Business
Combinations’ applies are Ind AS classified as at FVTPL. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fait value with all changes recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss.

For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable clection to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair values. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

1f the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCIL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl
to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the camulative gain or loss
within equity.

De-recoonition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
or the Company has transferred its rights to receive the contractual cash flows from the asset in a transaction
in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred.

Financial liabilities

Initial recosnition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit and loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fait value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent meassrement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPI. include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities desighated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the critetia in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for
those attributable to changes in own credit risk, which are recognised in OCI. These gains/ loss are not
subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities designated at amortised costs are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when
the labilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

De-recovnition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation undet the liability is discharged or cancelled or expites.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective catrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Ollsetting ol linancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone Balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date of exccuting a derivative contract and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Detivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
ot liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Embedded derivatives are separated from host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is
not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed

period but may have extension or termination options. In accordance with Ind AS 116 — Leases, at 1nccpt10n

of the coy the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains’ alese“Adease is defined as ‘a
Q}CHAND/O* .




CL Educate Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and explanatory information on the Standalone Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

=

)
d)

contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use an asset (the undetlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

a) The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the
supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

b) The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

¢) The Company assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease compornent,
the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Company has
elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single
lease component.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the undetlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability, The right-of-usc asset is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or
uscful life of right-of-use asset. Right-of-use asset are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease of, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and
penalties for carly termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if thete is a change
in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasuted in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the cartying amount of the right-of-use asset has
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The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property and lease
liabilities as a separate line item in the standalone financial statements of the Company.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 - Leases to short-term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.
The lease payments associated with these leases are tecognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Employee benefits

Contribution to provident and other innds

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
conttibution payable to the scheme for service received before the Standalone Balance Sheet date exceeds
the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognises termination benefit as a liability
and an expense when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be tequired to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due morc than twelve
months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the discount
rate determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are tecognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eatnings through Other Comprehensive Income (“OCTI”) in
the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on the earlier of:

The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cost

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
standalone statement of profit and loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
Net interest expense or income

Compensated absences

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit which are computed based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method
at the period end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the standalone statement of profit and loss
and are not deferri-lhe Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet to the extent
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it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.
Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond
twelve months, the balance is presented as a non-current liability.

Accumulated leaves, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefits. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

All other employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognised in the standalone
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Share-based payments

The Employee Stock Option Scheme (‘the Scheme’) provides for the grant of equity shares of the Company
to its employees. The Scheme provides that employees are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the
Company that vests in a graded manner. The options may be exercised within a specified period. The
Company uses the grant date fair value to account for its equity settled share based payment plans granted to
employee, with a corresponding increase in equity over the period that the employees unconditionally become
entitled to the awards. Compensation cost is measured using independent valuation by Black-Scholes model.
Compensation cost, if any is amortised over the vesting period.

The cost is recorded under the head “employee benefit expense” in the statement of profit and loss.
Foreign exchange transactions and translations
Initial recognition

Foreign cutrency transactions are recorded in the repotting currency, by applying the foreign currency
amount of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary asscts and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are restated/translated
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are
measured in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign cutrency, are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of transaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value which are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when fair value is determined.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Company’s
monctary items at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in
previous financials statement (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long term monetary assets)
are recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months ot less, which are subject to an insignificant
tisk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate

resources to_thescgments and assess their performance.
OWWDIO*
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Segment profit is used to measure petformance as management believes that such information 1s the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of ptoducts/services. Further:

Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment.

Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the
segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are included
under unallowable expenditure.

Income which relates to the Company as 2 whole and not allocable to segments is included in unallowable
income.

Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. Unallowable
assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable
to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker” or ‘CODM’
within the meaning of Ind AS 108.

The Company has opted to provide segment information in its Consolidated financial statements in
accotrdance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a ptesent obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the standalone statement of profit and loss, net of any
reimbursement. These estimates are reviewed at each tepotting date and adjusted to reflect current best
estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions ate discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or mote uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be requited to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases whete there
is a lability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent assets are
only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average number of equity shates outstanding during the year is adjusted for events, other than
conversion of potential equity shates, that have changed the number of equiry shares-outstanding without a
corresponding chamrran.esources. 4
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the Welghted average number of shares outstanding during the petiod
arc adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares except where result would be antidilutive.

Investment in subsidiaries and associate

An investor, regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee), shall determine whether
it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. An investor controls an investee when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee.

Thus, an investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has all the following:

a) power over the investec;

b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

¢) the ability ro use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investot’s returns.

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but not control or joint control
over those policies. The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiarics.

The Company has clected to recognise its investments in subsidiary and associate companies at cost in
accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’

Investments carried at cost is tested for impairment as per Ind-AS 36.
Service Delivery Expenses

These expenses are attributable to the delivery of core services by the Company in both its segments. The
cxpenses are recognized as per the following policy:

a) Expense telated to project and franchisee expenses are recognised in line with the revenue recognition ie.
over the period of contract in proportion to the stage of completion of the services at the reporting date.
The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the curriculum.

b) Expenses related to faculty, communication, digital learning support and others are recognised as and
when they are incurred.

Classification of refund liabilities:

Company has a policy to sell its sell it books and study material to the customers with a right of return. The
Company has recognised refund liability in respect of customer’s right to return the product in accordance

with Ind AS 115.

The Company has concluded that the arrangement for return is executory as there is no obligation to deliver
cash until the goods are returned. Accordingly, the Company has presented its refund liabilities as ‘other
current liabilities’.

Material management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s standalone financial statements requites management to make

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the repotted amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and

liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the

standalone financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on

management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of futute events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that requite a material

adjustment to the carrving amount of asscts or liabilides affected in future petiods.

CHANU/O*
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In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where material judgements, estimates and
assumptions ate required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various
accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes in
estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the management has made the following
judgements, which have the most material effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial
statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the otdinary course of business in relation to claims against the
Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be
resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of material judgments and
the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability that
future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-
forwatd can be utilised. In addition, material judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or
economic limits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the cartying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Hxisting
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market change or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

Useful lives of tangible/intangible assets

The Company reviews its estimate of the useful lives of tangible/intangible asscts at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets.

Defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligation ate determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the futute. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salaty increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. In view of the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach reporting date.

Inventories
The Company estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable evidence
available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be affected by future

technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.

Business combinations
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The Company accounts for the business combinations in accordance with guidance available in “Ind AS 103-
Business combinations” and the scheme approved by National Company Law Tribunal.

Impairment of non-financial assets and goodwill

In assessing impairment, Company estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating units
based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates
to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair valucs of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markers, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and voladlity. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March
2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the
company.

Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year:

a. Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment tequires the entities to disclose
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date
for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The
amendment did not have any material impact on the Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company.

b.  Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This
amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind
AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates.
The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2023. The amendment did not have any material impact on the Standalone Financial Statements of
the Company.

c. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition
exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual petiods beginning on or
after April 1, 2023. The amendment did not have any material impact on the Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company.
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CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(AU amounts are Rupees in lacs, nntess othernise stated)

4. Right-of-Use Assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Right of use assets

Total

Gross carrving amount

Balance as at April 1, 2022 827.48 827.48
Additions dutiny the year 341.53 341.53
Gross carrying amount as on March 31, 2023 L o 1,169.01 1,169.01
Additions during the year 960.88 960.83
Adjustment on account of termination / modification of lease (157.96) (157.96
Gross carrying amount as on March 31, 2024 L 1,971.93 1,971.93
Accundated Depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2022 402.78 402.78
Drepreciation for the year 24143 241.42
(Batance as at March 31, 2023 644.21 644.21
| D: preciation for the year 308.13 308.13
[Balance as at March 31, 2024 952.34 952.34
Net Canrying amount as at March 31, 2023 524.80 524.80
Net Carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 1,019.59 1,019.59

(This space has beent intentivitally left blunk)




CI. Educate Limited

Notes to the Standalonc Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(AN amonnts are Rapees in lacs. untess othenwive stated)
5. Investment propetty

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cost or deemed cost T )
Balance at the beginning of the vear 323,54 323.54
Additions during the year - -
Deletions during the vear - -
Balance at the end of the year o 323.54 323.54
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the year 40.88 35.12
Depreciation for the year 5.76 573
Balance at the end of the year - 46.64 40.88
Carrying amounts 276.90 282.66
B. Amounts recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss for investment property
For profit from invesunent property refer aote 34,
Rental income 18.00 18.00
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 18.00 18.00
Denreciation expense (refer note 39} 5.76 375
Profit from investment property 12.24 o 12.25
T Asat As at -
C. Measurement of fair value March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Investment property 995.00 787.88
995.00 787.88

D. Estimation of fair values

the Cotmpany obins independent valuations for each of its investment property by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate recognised professional
aualifictions and recent expedence in the location and categoty of the property being valued.

Fair marker value is the amount expressed in terms of money that may be reasonably be expected to be exchanged between a willing buyer and a willing seller, with equity
or both. The valuation by the valuer assumes that Compary shall continue to operate and run the assess to have cconomic utility.

Valuation technique:

Urider the market comparable method (or market comparable approach), a propetty’s fair value is estimated based on comparable transactions. The market compacable
approach is based upon the principle of substitution under which a potential buyer wili not pay more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute
property. In theory, the best comparable sale would be an exact duplicate of the subject property and would indicate, by the known selling price of the duplicate, the price
for which the subject property could be sold. The unit of comparison applied by the Company is the price per square meter (sqm}.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value ineasutement for the investment property has been categorised as a Level 2 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

The valuation techniques and the inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised witain Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Valuation technique

Market method

Observable inputs

Guideline rate (Per sq. m.) Similar picce of land rate (Per

Investment property consists of commercials spaces in Mumbai and Pune. During the vear, the Company has assessed that thete is no significant change n fair value of
investment property and accordingly the Company has considered the fair valuation of investment property is in accordance with valuation repott for the vear 2023-24.

(Lhis space bas been intentionally el blunk)




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the yeat ended March 31, 2024

(AL amonnts are Rupees in lacs, wunlesy othernise stated)

6. Goodwill
Reconciliation of carrying amount
As at As at
Mazrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at the end of the year 212.38 212.38
Total 212.38 212.38

6.1 Impairment tests for Goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Company’s opetating divisions which represent the lowest level within the Company at which

purp P 2, g pany’s op & p pany
goodwill is monitored for intetnal management purposes, which is not higher than the Company’s operating segments. The aggregate catrying amounts of
goodwill allocated to segments are as follows:

As at As at
Mazch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

EdTech 21238 21238

6.2 Significant estimate: key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

The Company tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is determined
based on value-in-use calculations which requite the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. These growth
rates are consistent with forecasts included in industry reports specific to the industry in which each CGU operates.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them. The values assigned to the key assumptions
represent management's assessment of future trends in the relevant industries and have been on historical data from both external and internal soutces.

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sales volume (“ annual growth rate) 2.00% 2.00%
Long term growth rate (*) 3.00% 3.00%
Discount rate (") 14.90%0 15.00%

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:

Assumption Approach used to determining values
Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast petiod; based on past performance

Sales volume : and management’s expectations of market development.

This is the weighted average growth tate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the
Long-tetm growth rate: budget period. The rates are consistent with fotecasts included in industry reports.

Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments and the countries in which they

Discount rates: operate.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Al amonnts are Rupees in lacs, nnless othenvise stated)

8. Intangibles assets under development

Particul As at As at
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 337.09 387.51
Add: Additions during the year 859.60 778.77
Less: Disposals during the year (805.35) (H04.33
Less: Capitalized during the year (201.13) (424.86
Closing Balance 190.21 337.09

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule®:
Particulars Amount in Capital Work In Progress for a period of Total
Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2024
Projects in progress 190.21 - - - 190.21
190.21 - - - 190.21
Particulars Amount in Capital Work In Progress for a period of Total
Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2023
Projects in progress 337.09 - - - 337.09
337.09 - - - 337.09

*There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)



CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Standal Financial § for the year ended Masch 31, 2024
1l cruvrstts are Ragpees it lacs, unless otherwive atedy

9

0

1

Investments in subsidiaries and associate
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(A) Subsidiary
{a) Investments in equity shares
Unquored, at cost
6,956 /March 31, 2023 : 6,950} fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of 1CE Gate Educational lnstitute Private Limiwed 700,04 0004
Less: Provision for Impairment (refer note ) (98.76) 296.00)
0128 404
98,168 /March 31, 2023: 98.468; fully paid up cquity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each of Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Privawe Limired 1,867.04 1.867.04
166,031,690 (March 31, 2023z 134,647, 4001 fully paid up cquity shares of SGID .01 each of Kestone CL \sia Hub Pte Limited (Formierly known as Carcer Launcher / 2,269.43 133749
Eiducational 1{ub Pre Limited)
[8,334 March 31,’2023 : 2,733) fully paid up equity shares of Rs, 10 cach of Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Privace Limited {refer note iiy T2002 786.98
3000 (March 31, 2023 : 5,000} fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Carcer Launcher Fouadadon 0,30 .59
9,900 (March 31, 2023 :9,900) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Carcer Launcher Private Limited 0.99 0.99
Deemed inv on of fi ial g issued for:
- Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited 20.33 20.33
(A) 5,480.19 4,617.97
(B) Others
Nil {March 31, 2023 : Nil; fully paid up equity shaves ot face value of Rs. 10 cach of B & 8 Strategy Services Privare Limited (refer note iii) - -
447 DNarch 31, 2023: 447) fully paicl up equity shares of Rs. 10 cach of Evue Technologics Private Limited 40,00 44,00
(B) 40.00 40.00
(A+B) ~ 5,520.19 4,657.97
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 5,520.19 4,657.97
Aggregate of quoted inves s and market value theseof -
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments (refer note 43) 98.76 296.00
i. There are no significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal.
MName of entities Relationship Place of business % of ownership Accounting methad
interest
Career Launcher Infrasirucrure Private Limiced Subsidiary India R0 Cost
Carcer Launcher Private Limited Subsidiary India 99.00"% Cost
ICE GATE liducational Institute Private Limited Subsidiary lndia 69.50" Cost
Kestone CLL Asia Flub Pre Limited Subsidiary Singapore TOO.00% Cost
Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited (refer now i} il | Subsidiare ) India 38.92va Cost

Note

i, During the previous yvear, the Company had recagnised the impairment loss on investment, Post COVID, the business under 1CE GATL Fducational Institute Private Limited was unable to reach its pre-COVID levels, Az a
result, the management got its investment reviewed through an external valuer and as per the valuation report, the management decided to impair its investment by Rs. 296.00 lacs. During the current year, the management of the
Company reassessed/ remeasured the carrying value of investments in Subsidiary, accordingly adjustments made in the financial statements (refer note 43).

ssment of future trends in the relevant industrics and have been on histerical data from both external and internal sources. The same are as follows:
15% 4 (Previous year: 13%)

The keg assumptions considered represent management”
Sales volume (%o annual growth rate)
Long term growth rate (40) ; 3% (Previous year
Discount rate ("5 13.39%0 (Previous vears 140}

ii. During the current vear, the Company has increased the holding in its associate ~ ThreeSixtyOne Degree Minds Consulting Pyvt. Ltcl, (361003 from 11,72% o 38.92% by participating in the rights issue carried out by 36110M
on 2nd February 2024, The Company has gamed management control over 361DM on 17 February 2024, resulting in change in status of 361 DM from an associate to a subsidiary.

iii. During the previous vear, the Company had sold the investment to one of its subsidiary company at arm's length price and the same is approved by the Board on its mecting held in December 28, 2022, The toss incurred on
sale is recogmised in the Staement of Proficand Loss {refer note 43),

Other non-current financial assets

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 .
Deposits with remaining maeurity for more than 12 months trom reporting date (refer note (i} below) §17.28 433339
Seeurity deposits 27016 236.87
1,087.44 4,592.26
Nore:
L. Includes deposits of Rs. 73805 lacs (previous year: Rs. 373.22 laes) pledged with various authoritics.
it. The Company's exposure o credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 54.
Nan-current rax assets (ner)
o~ As at As at
o March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
/ 1.746.12 191454
|
| 1,746.12 1,914.54




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
A amonnty are Rupecs i baes, sndese atherwise tatends

12 Deferred tax assets (net)

Dieferred tax assets (net (refer note 561

13 Other non-current assets

Prepaid expenses
- prepaid reat

14 Inventories

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

Finished gaods

[.ess: Provision for slow-moving inventory

Note:
i Inventorics are pledged as seeurities far borrowings taken from banks (refur note 23 and 27),
1M inventories categories represeat text books,

15 Trade recejvables

Unsecured

Considered gaod

Credit impaired

Less: Mlowances for doubiful trade receivables

(1fs spave has beest wtentionatiy left blank 1

As at As nt_
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1.230.25 1,333.38
1,230.25 1,353.38
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- .30
: = 9.50
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,547.44 149148
(10,00}
1,547.44 1,481.48
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
6,587.48 6,230.22
238,00 243.20
38.00) (243.209
6,587.48 6,230.22




CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Standal

Financiai S

for the year ended March 31, 2024

£ AU amsrnts are Rapecs in lacv, wtdess ntherwie statedy

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Nat Due Less than

6 months

Particulars 6 months

to 1 years

1-2 Years

As at March 31,2024
Undisputed T'racde Receivables- Considered

good 333241
L adisputed Trade Reecivables- Which have

significant inercase in eredit risk

Undisputed T'rade Receivables- ceedic

impaired 0.54

173138 807.52

Disputed "I'rade Reccivables- Considered

ood 0.57 255 0.35

Disputed Trade Receivables-

Which have significant inercase in eredit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables-
credit impatred

3,333.52 1,736.68 809.47

Less: Allowances for doubtful irade reecivables
‘Total trade receivable

496,00

More Than
3 vears

2:3 Nears,

96.38 10123

3091 17002

- 18.63

Toral

6,564.98

238.00

22,50

508.64

147.29 289.88

6,825.48
(23800
6,587.48

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars 6 months

Not Due Less than
to 1vears

6 months

1-2 Years

More Than

2-3 Years
3 years

Total

As at March 31, 2023

1 'ndisputed Trade Reecivables- Considered

good 4,1138.91)
T ndisputed Trade Receivables- Which have

signiflcant increase in credit risk -

LEtLog 352.82

1 adisputed Trade Receivables- eredit

impaircd 21.02 248 19.21
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered

good 299 0.22

Disputed Trade Receivables-

Which have significant increase in eredit risk
Disputed Trade Reccivables-

credit impaired

257.65

23.60

u
N
=

336.90

12.52 162.37

3.87

6,148.78

243.20

BL.44

4,062.91 1,113.79 37203

Less: Allowances for doubtful trade reccivables
Total trade receivable

283.25

136.30 505.14

647342
(243.20)
6,230.22

Note:

{i) The Company™
“T'rade reecivables are non interest bearing and are normally reccived in normal operating cycle,

"rade receivables are pledged as securities for borrowings taken from banks {refor now 23 and 27).
{iv} Refer mote 48 for trade reccivables fram refated partics.

Cush and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- On cutrent accounts

Deposits with original maturitics with less than 3 months
Cash an hand

Note:

{§) The Company™s exposure to liquidin dsks are disclosed in note 54,

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

:ndd account- bank balance

Unpaid divi
Depaosits with original maturity for more than three months but remaining maturity of less than twelve moaths (refer note i

Note :
{iy Deposits of Rs. 469,84 Lacs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 6.43 lacs) pledged with various authoritics,
(i) The Company's exposure 1o liquidity risks are disclosed in note 34,

xposure to crediv and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 54

As at
March 31, 2024

435,24
1400.10
114.55

1,969.89

As at

March 31, 2024

234
6,133.65

6,138.19

As at
March 31, 2023

450,45

231.47

Y

As at
_March 31, 2023

236
3.863.22

3,865.78




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Standal Fi ial 8

£ amonnts are Rupecs b lacs, iandevs atherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2024

18 Loans - Current

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to cmployees

Loans to related parties

Note
i) Refer note 48 for transactions with related parties.

{ii) The Company’s exposure to credit and currency dsks are disclosed in note 34.

Details of loans or advances to specified persons:

As at As at
Matcch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
84.30 88.90
3745 381,33
141.75 469.45

As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding amount | % to the total loans and
of loan or advance in | advances in the nature
the nature of loan | of loans

Type of borrower

As at 31 March 2023

Outstanding %o to the total loans
amount of loan or | and advances in the
advance in the nature of loans

nature of loan

repayable on demand
- related partics

o
kel
N
bl

380,33 81,06

‘The Company has provided following loans in pursuant to section 186 (4) of Companies Act, 2013,

The Company has given unsceured loan to their group companies/parties for mecting their working capital requirement. Details of the same as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are a3 below:

|Company Name | Amount repayment

| during the year ended

As at

Rate of interest March 31, 2024

| 2024%
Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited 1 (281.10) 9.30", -
1CTE Gate Educational Instimte Privase Linired | (42.00) Nil 37.45
Tatal | (323.10) | 57.45
Company Name |I Amount
iven/(repayment . As at
‘ dlgm'ng ':}(le §le endld Rate of interest Match 31,2023
2023*
Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited - o | {849.37) 281.10
1CTE Gate lducadonal Institute Private Limited | 23.85 99.45
Touwl [ (821.52) 380.55

* Includes conversion of interest into loan.

# Duriag the previ 1, the Company has sold jts property sitaatcd at Greater NOIDA. The Compa
project which was extended to Carcer Launcher Education Foundation (CLEF) for development of preniises
a patt of the exceprdonal items in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company ‘refer note 43),

ot higher education purposes

Disclos: to schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Listing Oblig: and Discl R } Regulations, 2015

recognised a gain on sale of asset of Rs, 2.398.47 lacs and has written off a loan of Rs, 1,214,060 lacs refated to same
“T'he project was later discontinued by the Company. The pertaining transactions form

Name of Enterprise Rate of Intcrest Secured/ Unsecured Balance as at Maximum O/S during the

Balance as at Maximum O/S during the

31 March 2024 year 13-24 31 March 2023 vear 22-23
Loans and Advances in the nature of loan given to subsidiasies
Career Launcher Infrastrucrare Private Limited 9.30"% Unsecured 28110 281.10 1.246.28
1CE Gate Hducational Institute Private Limited Nil Unsecured 3745 99.43 99.45 99.45

(This space bas bees intentionally lft blank)
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20

Other current financial assets

Unsecured, considered gaod
Contract ass

1.
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Other receivables from related partics

Interest acerucd but not due on Joan given 1o related partics
Security deposits

Other receivables (refer footnoe iy

Note:
i. Includes reecivables from business partners,

ii. The Company exposure 1o credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 34.

Other current assets

Prepaid expenses
Advances to supplicrs
Advanees o employees
Advances to related partics
Right to return ts

Balance with statutory authorities

Note:
{ii Refer note 48 for transactions with retaved partics.

{This spaut bas keen intentionally loft blank i

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
370.60 439.97
139.01 208.96
11323 133.62
36.05
7173 11676
§63.69 66
1,978.46 1,623.28
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1490.05 1.627.95
718,76 936.24
60.39 94.23
61.31 6l.31
98.64 68.70
31642 456.03
2,745.97 3,244.48
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2} Equity Share capital

Authorised
BOOODO00 (March 31, 2023 5U0,60,000) cquiry shuces of Rs. 3 vadh “refer nete 39,

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

Asat
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023_

LH00.00

4000

3,40,32.393 (March 31, 2023 350683121 vquiry shares 6f Re 3 each, iy pad up 270262
2,702.62 2,753.42
4. Terms and rights attached to equity shares
Vouing
Lach holder of equiry share s enfitled 1o one vote per <hare held.
Dividends
The Company declues and pays dividend m Tadun mpees The dvidend pocposed by the Board of Duectors s subieer o approval of the sharcholders s ensumg Annual General AMeenng exceptn
the cuse where mrenm divndend 1s disrmibured. The Company has aor distebuted am drvidend m the current year and previous year.
Liquidation
In the evene o bquidanon of the Company, the holders of equir shares shall he enatied 10 recenve 1l of the remanng assets of the Ce anpany, afrer distriburson of al preferential amounts, (f any
Such diserbution amounes will e m properrion re the sumber of v shaes held by the sharehelders
b. Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :
As ac - As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
i the begnming ot e 68312 3 2833133 L4los™
Luss: Share exingnished on buy back “refer not 38; (16,49, 175, 3248 {7.97.200) (39.80:
Add Tssue oof bonus shares freter note 39, 27334150 1,376 71
Add: Tssue of shages under EROP «refer nere 52, 33,536 163
QOutstanding at the end of the year 5,40,52,3‘)3_ 2,702.62 5,50,68,312 753.42
¢, Details of shateholders holding more than 5° « shares in the Company:
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares _ Percentije No. of shares Percentace
Mr Sav Nara, nan K 99,54,832 18420 99,534,432 1808
arim Puri 520 1744 04,28,520 17120
Bilakes Consultng Prvate Lamited 30,201,840 929", 50,210,840 912"
Flowermy Tree Tnvestment Manggement Pre. Lid. aloug wiel irs 12.30,288 T, 44,30,288 805
Persens Aermgn Coneert ve. Vrjuna Fund Pre. Trd
GPE fndiay Laimired 20,95.892 37.45,402 LT
3,16,31,372 3,26,21,372 59.24%
d. Details of shares held by promoters in the Company:
As at March 31, 2024 - As at March 31, 2023
Kz al %% ch; i Yo 1 % cha i
No. of shases » of total s change during No. of shares a of total s change during
shares the year shares the year
Name of Promoter
Mr Saryy Naravanan R 99,534,832 1842 O.00% 99534832 808" o D61
My it Pua 928,520 17014 L0 9428320 17.12% 200"
Mr R Shevakumar 14.28,724 264 000" 1428724 259% g,
Me R Sreenivasan 414,792 262" Q0" 0 HH,792 257" 000"
My Sujr Bhattachams o 812248 [30% a0y 812248 147 G007
Me. Nikhdl Makapn L3468 (.24% D00% 151,468 024" DAy
Balakes Consnlong Privare Limieed 020540 9.29%n A1V 502184 912, o000
28192424 5n15% 2,81,92,4 51195 o
¢. Agpregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash dusing the period of five years i diately preceding the reporting date
1 The Company has sssued equity shares 1 H65.678 as tally pad up watdeut pavment being recerved i cash during the financial years 2018-19 ro 202223 (previous year 2017- 18 ro 021-22
i he Company has issued equity shares aggregating 33,336 (March 31, 2023 Nil oF Rs 10 each fully pad up dusing the finanend years 2018-19 10 2022-23 previeus vear 2017 18 to 2021-22 . on
exeresse of options granted under the employee stack oprion plans wheren part conssderarien was reccwved n form of employee services
it 273,34, 156 (previous vear 273,34, 136. cquiry shases has been issued by way of honus shares durng the financial vears 2008 19 16 2022223 (previeus year 201713 to 2021-22;
£ 18:46.673 ‘previus year: 7,97,200; equity shares have been boughr back by the Company dusing the pernd of frve vears wmmediarely preceding the reporting date.
8. Shares reserved for issue under options

Far detals of shires reserved for wsue under the employee stock aprion ot the Company ‘refer to note 32
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)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(widi)

(ix)

e R iy Bt e ity s Ao

Other equity

2.1 R
Opening balanc

arn;

\edd Ner profir for che vear
Less: Bug-back tax pad
Closing balance (A)

22.2 iti iwn reserve

Balance ar the beginnmg of the year

T.ess. Unlised tor buy-
LessT

Tess: amounr tewsfer to capieal redemprion reserve

¢ of honus

\dd: Shave issued under SOP
Balance at the end of the year (B)

22.3 General reserves
Balnee ar the begimmng 2 end nf the vear (C)

22.4 Deem v
Openmy balance

Add \ddinon durig the year
Closing balance (D}

22,5 Share option ding accoynt
Batance ar the hegimmmng of the vear

Add: Gross compunsation for options for the year
OP 1ssued

Less Transicr ro Securiry premium on
Closing balance (E)

22.6 Capital reserves

Balance at the beginning /end of the year (F)

22.7 Capital red ion reserves
Balunce at the beginnmg ot th

ar

Add: amounr tanster dunng the y

Balwnee ar the end oof the year (G)

22.8 Amal ion Adj Reserve
Balinee at the begmming /end of the vear (H)

9 Remeasurs ug of defin, nef ns

Opunnng bak

1ce
\dd Addmrion durmg the vear
Closing balance (I)

Total reserves and surplus (A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H+I)

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Retained earnings
C

Securities preminm reserve

cared from profic/loss of the Company, as adjusted for distubunons re owners and rranster o uther ceserve.

As at
_i\l]arch 31, 2024

(LHT50)
96705
“169.01;
(619.35)

WAL,
3248,

2094
26,649.03

3631

56.31

0.20

(226454

3011
504

- 135.15

24,090.31

Secunties premium has been created upon issue of shares ar premuum. The reserve shall be uithsed in accordance with dhe provisions of the Compasies \er, 2013,

General reserve

The Company appropriares 4 portton e genetal reserves our of the profits either as per the requirements of the Companies ver 2013 et
) B ¥ i Y
reserve 5 available for pavment of dividend to the shaccholders as per the provisions of the Companes \er, 2013

Deemed equity contribution

The Company bhave reeeved fimanel guarantee trom ies promarers,

Share option outstanding account

The Company has an equity-sertled shave-based payment plan for certam carcgories of employees of the Company. Refee ta note 33 for further derails on these plans.

Capital reserve
[he capatal es

Capital redemption reserve

rve was penerated onaccounr oF aequisition of ersovhile Pacagon cla

As at

March 31,2023

6.11,
133075
1202.03;

(1,417.39)

29.838.85
0646.01;
137671,

27,522.13

36.95

33400

35.00

0.20

226454

133405
294
130.11

24,008.77

or voluntanly weomeer furure contingences. The sand

s per Compames Act, 2013, capital cedemphion reserve 15 created when company puschases its own shares out of free reserves ot secunines premium. 4 sum equal to the nominal valie of the

shares so purel

Amalgamation Adjustment Reserve
Analgamation adjustment defiat account s a ve

amount peesented as amalgaminon adipsunenr defie acconnt.

Remeasurement of defined henefit plans

ed 1 reansterred ro capiral redemprion res

rve. The vesenve s utibsed maccacdance wath the peovisions of section 69 of the Compames \er, 2013,

arve onaccume of adastments of net asset transterced to umadgamated company, as neganve carrying value of net assets cansferred, theretore

The Company operares 1 post-employment defined benetit plan trr Graray. Plan i< governed by the Payment of Granwey Act, 1972, Under the Gratwiy Aer, employees are entided to specific

benehr ar the tme of retiretent o tecmimnanon of the emplovment on compleron af five vears or death while m employment.
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o

Borrowings - Non current

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Secured loan
From banks

Vebicle loan from banks {refer note 13 88.69 96.27

Term loan from banks (refer nute i) 36.51
From financial institutions

Vebicle loan from NBEC (refer note §if) 31.17
Total non-current borrowings 119.86 152.78
Tess: Current maturitics of nun-current borrowings (disclosed as carrent borrowingsi o 27901 82,44
Tss: Interest acerued but not due on borrowings (disclosed as current burtowings) 0.36 0.82
Non-current borrowings 91.59 69.52

The Company's expusure to currency risks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 54,

Notes:

. Vehicle loan from banks

Vehicle loan from banks are secured against hypothecation of concerned vehicles. The vehicle loan from banks carry interest rate in the range of 7.90% 1o 9.18 " per annum BMarch 31, 2023 : 7.90% 0

9.18 "o per annum). The weighted average remaining tenure for these loans are 3.33 vears Alarch 31 52023+ 292 vears); with a rotal equal monthly ins
) 3! 3 g 3 g ) ] 3

.11 Ines per manth),

Secured term loans from banks

a) HDFC Bank

The Compuny had taken a term loan from HDFC Bank under Emergeney Credit Line Guaranteed Scheme (RCGLS). During the previous year,
36.51 ltacs.

Interest rate:
(i) These loans cartied intetest at 8,80% per annum.

Repayment schedule:

allment of Re, 2,88 lacs per month (31 March, 2023

company has completely paid off the balances of Rs.

(i) The loan was repayable in 36 monthly installments after principal moratorium of 12 month. The repayment of installments has commenceed from December 7, 2021 and the Tast installment was paid

on April 25, 2023,

- Sccured vehicle loan from financial institution

Vehicle loan from NBFC are sccured against hyputheeation of concerned vehicle's. The vehicle loan carry interest rate of UL25% per annum . The remaining tenure for this loans is 4.33 vears; with o

equal montbly installment of R, 0.28 faes per month.

(iv) Aggregate amount of loans guaraneced by the dircetors of the Company is Rs. Nil March 31, 2023: Rs. 851.70 lacs) includes amount of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 Rs. Nil) disclosed under non-current

borrowings und Rs. Nil March 31, 2023: Rs. 85170 Iacs ) current borrowings (Refer note 27).

(v} The tenm luans have been used For the specifie purpuse far which they arc taken as at the vear end.

24

25

26

Lease Liability - Non Current

As ar As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease linbility 828.62 336.24
828.62 336.24
Non-current provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 47)
Gratoity 32408 28033
Compensated absenees 187.22 198.61
511.30 482.94
Other non-current liabilitics
As at As at
_ March 31, 2024 _March 31, 2023
Contract liabilitics 169.84 186.73
169.84 186.73
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27 Borrowings - Curtent

As at
March 31, 2023

Sccured
-I'rom banks

-Cash credit from bank (Refer nate below) 1,722,28
Current maturitics of non-current rerm luan from banks {refer note 23
Current maturities of nun-currene vehicle loan from banks (refer note 23) 2791
Interest acerued bue not due on burrowings ‘refer note 23) 0.36
1,750.55
Notes: —

(i) Details of these loans are as follows:

Cash credit represents overdrafts from HDEC Bank Limited and [ndusing Bank Limited which are repayable on demand. Cash credic faciliey from ICICT Bank Limited was closed in June 2022

ia) HDFC Bank Limited
The Company had entered into a finance facility agreement with limic amounting Rs. 7530.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 730,00 lacs} with HDEFC Bank as an overdraft facility. The outstanding balance as
on March 31, 2024 is Rs, 134.97 lacs ( previeus year: Rs. 297 43 lacs)

Iaterest rate
These loans carry interest at bank's fixed depuosit tate + 0.5 1o 0.73% (March 31, 2023: bank's base rate + 3.75%) per annum,
b P » ¥

Repayment schedule
The overdraft facilitics is only for 1 vear tenure,

Security
These burtowings are secared by way of fixed depusits where as in previous v

ar, it was sceured by way of first and cxclusive chatge on all present and future current and moveable assets including

moveable fixed assets of the Company.

{b) ICICT Bank Limited

The Company has closed its cash eredit facility for Toan against security (TAS account) in June 2022 with limit amounting Rs. 1,000.00 lacs with TCICI Bank Limited
Interest rate

These facility catry inzerest at bank's base rate + 1.20% (March 31, 2023 baak's base rate + 0.20%) per annurm.

Repayment schedule
The overdraft facilities was only for 1 year teaure.

Security
The facility was secured by the Murual Funds invested by the Company.

tci IndusInd Bank Limited
The Company had entered into a finance facility agreement with limit amounting Rs. 1,850.00 lacs
balance as on March 31, 2024 is Rs, 1,587.32 Iacs ( previous veat: Rs. 55425 lacs)

larch 31, 2023: Rs. 183000 lacs) with IndusIned Bank as an cash credic facility. The outstanding

Interest rates
1. 10.63" p.a from October 04, 2020 which was further changed o a range of 9.3% to 11.19% in current vear on cash credit limie from Indusind Bank Timited.
Primary security

First and exclusive charge un entire current assets of the Company both present and future for cash eredit from IndusInd Bank Lirmited.

Collateral security

a. Lien on fixed deposits amounting Rs. 462,50 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 370.00 lakhs).

b. First and exclusive charge on movable fixc

assers of the Company both present and future.

(i) Details of quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks and reasons:
For the year ended 31 March 2024:

Name of bank Quarter ended Particulars of Amount as per Amount as Amount of |Remarks/reasons (if any)
securities provided |books of account  |reported in the |difference

quarterly
statement

'Induslnd Bank Limited June 30, 2023 Pari-pnssu_clmrgc on 8,566,533 8,649.33 | (82.80) |The vatance is majorly on account of advance |
| curtent usscts received from customer which is being adjusted
against receivables in the buoks of accounts and
cxpected credit loss allowance which is not being
considered in the stock statement submitted o
bank.

TndusInd Bank Limited Seprember 30, 2023 su charge on 9,191.30 927843 (87.13) |The variance is majorly on account of advance

ots recefved frum customer which is being adjusted
against receivables in the books of accounts and
expected credit loss allowance which is not being
considered in the stuck statement submitted o
bank,

IndusInd Baok Limited December 31,2023 |Pari-passu charge on 8,481.99 8,892.90 (410.91) [The variance is majorly on account of advance
curtent assets received from customer which is being adjusted
against receivables i the books of accounts and
expected eredit Joss allowance which is nut being
considered in the stock statement submirted o
bank.

\IndusInd Bank Limited [Mareh 2, 2024 Pari-passu charge on 8,372.92 8,384.61 (11.69) |The vatiance is majorly on account of advance
CHITEnt assets received from customer which is being adjusted

against receivables in the books of accounts and

expected credit loss allowance which is not being
considered in the stock statement submitted o
bank.

(iii) The Company’s exposure to curtency risks, liquidity risks and interest rate tisks are disclosed in note 54.
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(iv) Reconciliation berween the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

28

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Borrowings
(Refer (a) below)

Lease liabilitics
(Refer (b) below)

Balance as ar April [, 2023 1,004.48 621.31
Interest accrued during the vear 126.04 112,63
Loan repayments (net)/lease repayments {ncluding interese) 838.12 {3%6.87)
[nterest pavment during the year (126.51)
Other non cash changes - T40.74
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,842.13 1,093.81
Particulars h Borrowings Lease liabilities
{Refer (a) below) (Refer (b) below)
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,678.63 31533
Interest acerued during the vear 103.24 3373
TLoan repayments (net}/lease repayments (including interest) (671.26) (289.48)
Interest pavment during che year {105.66)
Other nun cash changes {047} 3-4.53
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,004.48 621.31
©
Borrowings As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
-Current {refer nute 27) 1,750,535 934.96
-Non-Curtent {refer note 23) 91.59 69.52
1,842.14 1,004.48
(b)
Lease liabilitics As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
-Current (refer note 283 26519 285.07
-Non-Current {refer note 241 828.62 336.24
= 1,093.81 621.31
Current Lease Liability As at As at -
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current lease liability (refer note 40) 265.19 285.07
265.19 285.07

(Uhis space bas beew intentivnally fefi blank)
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29 Trade payables

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade payables
- totul outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and {refer note 300 “6.84 83.15
- total vutstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3483.33 3,056.83
B 3,560.17 3,14198
Trade payables ageing schedule
i andi i i 4 AVIe: Total
Particalars Not Due | Outstanding for following periods from due date of glva) ment
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | More Than 3 years |
As at March 31, 2024
Totl vutstanding dues of micro enrerprises
and small enterpriscs “6.84 76.84
Toral outstanding dues of creditors wther than
i 207197 943.97 168.00 139.11 140.28 3,483.33
Disputed Dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - -
Disputed Ducs of creditors ather than micro
enterptises and small enterprises - =
2,148.81 943.97 168.00 159.11 140.28 3,560.17
anding ing peri 4 2 Total
Particulars Not Due | Olulst.mdm__ for following periods from due date of payment o
| Less than1vear | 1-2 Years 2-3 Years [ More Than 3 vears
As at March 31, 2023
Total vutstanding dues of micto entetprises
and small enterprises 85.15 - 85.15
Total vutstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterptises 2,102.34 3533.38 19444 125407 ¥1.60 3,056.83
Disputed Ducs of micro enrerprises and smail
enterprises -
Disputed Dues of ereditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - -
2,187.49 553.38 194.44 125.07 81.60 3,141.98

Note:

i. For trade payables to related parties please refer note 48.

it. Other ereditor are non-interest bearing and are normally setded in normal trade cvele.

iil. The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related 1o trade payables are disclosed in note 34,

(This space bas beo intentivnally Jeft blank;
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30 Other current financial liabilities

As at . . As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unpaid dividend (refer note iif} 2,54 2.56
Payable for property, plant and equipment
-to refated parties {refer note 48) 18.06
Fmployee related pavables 628.19 20146
Payable to sclling shareholders 28006 26.06
Receipts on behalf of clients 13.33 29.61
672.12 779.75
Note: A
i. Refer nute 48 for payables ro related parties.
it. The Company's exposure t curreney tisks, liyuidity risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 34.
iil. Unpaid dividend is outstanding from financial yvear 2018-19.
31 Other current liabilitics
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contraer liabilitics 1,903.80 1734536
Statutury dues payable 216.46 24213
Fmplayee unprest 9.18 14.56
Retund liability created againse right to return 12355 85487
Orther pavables 1.00 1.00
2,253.99 2,077.94
32 Cucrent provisions
As ar As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for cmployee benefits (refer note 47)
Gratuity 33.94 24.85
Compensated absences 74.31 45.31
128.25 70.16

(This space bas beens intentionally feft blanky
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33 Revenue from operations

Sale of products:
- Text books

Sale of services:

- Iiducation and training programmes

- Hvent management services
- Advettsing services

Other opetating revenue

- Scrap sales

Total

I Disaggregated revenue information as per geographical markets

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

4,621.23 3,932.39
13,859.94 12,432.12
9,000.47 9,738.93

1,711.55 1,159.84

349 2581

29,196.68 27,289.09

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Geographical markets

Particulars India Overseas Total
- Education and training programmes 13,101.01 758.93 13,859.94
- Fvent management scrvices 8,908.82 91.65 9,000.47
- Text books 4.170.50 450.73 4,621.23
- Adverdsing scrvices 1,665.02 46.53 1,711.55
- Scrap sales 3.49 3.49
27,848.84 1,347.84 29,196.68
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Geographical markets
India Overseas Total
- BEducation and training programmecs 11,873.73 558.39 12,432.12
TIivent management scrvices 9,672.67 66.26 9,738.93
- Text books 3,446.97 48542 3,932.39
- Advertising services 1,159.84 - 1,159.34
- Scrap sales 25.81 - 25.81
26,179.02 1,110.07 27,289.09
Changes in contract liability are as follows:- Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,921.10 1,581.07
Revenue tecognised that was deducted from trade receivables as uncarned revenue balance at the beginning of the (1,734.37) (1,391.95)
year
[ncrease duc w invoicing during the year, excluding amount recognised as revenue during the vear 1,940.06 1,779.33
Gross unearned revenue 2,126.80 1,968.45
Reclassification of uncarncd revenue that is not vet collected in cash from trade reccivables (53.16) (47.35)
Balance at the end of the year 2,073.64 1,921.10

Note:

L. Opening balance of contract liabilities arc inclusive of unearned revenue not vet collected in cash from trade receivables.

2. Contract liability is associated with educational and training programmes provided to student and institutional customers. However, there is increased in the

contract liabilitics due to increased in revenue of the Company.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsaisfied) Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within one year 1,903.80 1,734.37
Morte than onc year 169.84 186.73
Details of contract assets related to sales of goods, services and other operating income are: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade reccivables 6,587.48 6,230.22
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34 Other income

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost

-Security deposits

-Fixed deposits

-Loan w related parties (refer note 48)
-Income tax refund

-Orthers*

Income on investments catried at fair value through profit or loss

-Gain on sale of mucual funds
Liabilities no longet required written back
Rental income on investment property (refer note 5)
Net gain on forcign currency transactions and translation
Gain on sale of property, plant and cquipment
Claim tecovered*
Gain on modification and termination of lease
Miscellancous income

* Claim realised from " Crest Education Private Limited” on account of favourable order received during the year from Honourable Delhi High Court.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
15.69 16.81
605.19 296.02
1.53 62.94
3579 16.83
28.68 391
91.30
149.55 82.89
18.00 18.00)
20.05 5194
4.60
24371
56.17
2328 30.59
1,200.24 671.23

(This space bas been intentianally left blank)
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35 Purchases of stock-in-trade

March 31, 2024

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 Mazch 31, 2023
Text books 1,766.83 1,683.43
1,766.83 1,683.43
36 Changes in inventories of stock in trade
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventories at the end of the year
-Finished gouods 1,547.44 1,491.48
-Impact of right to return assets (refer note 20 98.84 68.70)
Total 1,646.28 1,560.18
Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Finished goods 149148 1,439.68
-Impact of right to return assets (refer note 20) 68.70) 79.30
Total 1,560.18 1,518.98
Net (increase) in inventories (86.10) (41.20)
37 Employee benefit expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salarics, wages and bonus 3,733.81 3,643.94
Expensces related to post-cmployment defined benefit plans {refer note 47) 98.62 81.16
[ixpenses related to compensated absences 39.05 64.29
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer nore 47) 169.36 173.97
Employee stock compensation expense (refer note 52) 2747 35.00
Sraff welfare expenscs 233.59 165.82
4,301.90 4,164.18
38 Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
-on vehicle loans 5.89 .56
-on term loans .69 45,31
-~on overdrafts 81.65 8.81
Interest expensce on lease liabilitics (refer note 46) 112.63 5373
Interest expense on statutory dues 13.31 -
Other botrowing costs 24.50 41.56
238.67 156.97
39 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 117.31 97.12
Amorttisation of intangible asscts (refer note 7) 740.32 585.02
Depreciation on investment property (refer note 5) 5.76 5.75
Depreciation on right of use assets {refer note 4) 308.13 24143

1,172.52 929.32
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Service delivery expenses

Franchisee expenses

Project cxpenses

Faculty expenses

Communication cxpenses

Digital learning and support cxpenses
Material printing costs

Vocational business servicing costs

Sales and marketing expenses

Adverrisement expense
Digital marketing expenses
Business promotion expense

Other expenses

Repairs to:

-Buildings

-Others

Insurance

Rares and taxes

Rent

Legal and professional charges (refer note i below)
Travelling and conveyance

Office expenses

Sales incentive

Sundry balanees written off

Bad debts writien off

Provision tor expected credit loss

Provision for slow-moving inventory

Freight and cartage outward

Commission including sitting fees to non-cxecutive dircetors
Loss on forcign currency transactions and translation
Donations

Cotportate social responsibilicy (refer note 49)

Miscellancous expenscs

Note:
(1) Remuneration to auditors (excluding GST)

- for statutory audit
- for othet services

- for reimbursement of expenses

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7,523.83 6,359.65
7,112.57 7,707.97
473.05 297.73
273.56 269.97
236.99 190.58
251.35 223.62
- 4.59
15,871.35 15,054.11
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,208.18 836.44
956.05 1,012.89
140.24 207.96
2,304.47 2,077.29
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
62.87 79.03
129.34 78.70
36.33 40.50
49.23 100.22
121.24 140.21
595.95 501.88
281.28 188.46
803.72 726.40
83.14 61.75
19.61 18.65
1,179.52 465.80
39.24 2532
- 10.00
40,30 28.60
30.60 11.98
497
0.40
49,73
58.52 44.79
3,536.26 2,572.02

Year ended

Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
46.00 41.00
21.80 13.00
4.75 1.01
72.55 55.01
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43 Exceptional items

Sale proceeds of Greater NOIDA property™®
Less : wrirten down value as per books

Less : Expenses incurred on transfer of propetty
Profit on sale of property (a)

Gain on sale of intangible assets

Loans and advances written off (refer note 18)
Loss on sale of invesunents (refer note 9)
Lxpenses incurred on sale of investments
Property, plant and cquipment discarded
Receivables written off (refer note 57)

Loss on fair value of investments - (refer note 9)

Reversal/Provision for impairment of investments in subsidiary {refer now 9)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

5,086.71
(2,271.33)
(416.91)

(145.97)
197.24

2,398.47
3234
{1,214.60)
(568.69)
(18.00)
(14.99)
(361.18)

(296.00)

51.27

(42.65)

*During the previous vear, the Company has completed the process of sale of the property held ar Greater NOIDA. The sale has been approved by the Board

Members and Audit Committee in its mecting held on May 19, 2022. In the preceding vear, the Company has classified lease hold land amounting to Rs. 168.14

lacs {nct of lease liability) and Building amounting ro Rs. 2,103.19 lacs located at Greater NOIDA assers held for sale.

Such property has been sold during the previous vear, the expenses incurred in relation to sale of property, other receivables and impairment in the investments in

subsidiary has been seroff with profit on sale of pruperty considering the exceptional nature of the irems.

44 Earning per share

(a) Basic eatnings/(loss) per share ( In Rs.)
Artributable to the equity holders of the Company

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (In Rs.)
Attriburable to the equity holdets of the Company

(c) Reconciliations of eatnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic and diluted eatnings per share

Profic/ (loss) attributable to the cquity holders of the Company used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per

share:

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of cquity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic carnings per share

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Stock Optons Plan

Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in
calculating diluted eatnings per share

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1.77 2.4
1.76 241
967.05 1,330.75

No. of shares

54,700,999

169,692

54,870,691

No. of shares

55,341,484
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A.

i
if)

i)

i)

Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations

Commitments As at As at
Mazch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Fstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital - -
account and not provided for (net of advances)

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (refer note 2) 3,180.09 1,813.72

3,180.09 1,813.72

Note a : Details of claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (refer note (i))

Service tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal for various years 1,077.89 1,077.89
Goods and Service tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal for various vears$ 1,412.23 -
Income-tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal for various years* 624.38 670.44
Other cases Matters in dispute/under appeal # 65.39 65.39

3,180.09 1,813.72
Remarks:

(i) The management is of the opinion that, based on issues decided in the catlier years and the legal advice that the ultimate outcome of the legal
proceedings in tespect to tax matters, as given above will be in favour of the Company and also will not have material adverse effect to the financial
position of the Company. It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending
resolution for respective proceedings.

$ Includes, show cause notices received from the Directorate General of GST Intelligence amounting to Rs. 1,281 lacs related to supply of Books
as a part of composite supply of Commercial coaching services. The Company had won a similar ruling in the Supreme Court undet the erstwhile
Scrvice Tax regime. The Company believes that it has discharged all the relevant GST liabilities in compliance with the applicable laws and has filed
a reply to the notice with the concerned authorities.

* This does not includes the income tax amounting to Rs. 1,696.20 lacs in respect of AY 2021-22 and AY 2022-23 respectively as such demand is
erroneously raised based on the contingent liability disclosed in the financials statement and a rectified order has been received during the year.

# Other cases

Triangle Education, then a tranchisee of the Company in Jaipur, had arbitrarily terminated the agreement and started 2 competing business using a
brand of CL Educate Limited. The Sole arbitrator has passed the final order partially in favour of the Company. Further, the Hon'ble Delhi High
Coutt passed an order thereby restraining Triangle Education from using the trade mark LST/Ex-LST in any form, but Triangle Education violated
these orders and hence the Company has filed a contempt petition against the tespondent before Delhi High Court and the matter is fixed for
argument on July 31, 2024,

A student, has filled 2 case against the Company for refund of fees amounting Rs. 6.20 lacs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 6.20 lacs) on the ground that he
paid fees to Brilliant Tutorials considering the fact that the Company had a tie-up with Brilliant Tutorial which was subsequently called off by the
Company. The matter is fixed for final argument on July 8, 2024,

The Dircctor of Industries and Commerce cum Chairman MSE- Chandigarh has sent a notice amounting Rs. 12.31 lacs (March 31, 2023: Rs.12.31
lacs including interest of Rs. 3.30 lacs) on behalf of Reivera Fabricators regarding non payment of dues on account of uniforms supplied to Indus
Wortld Schools. An award was passed against the Company by the District Level Micro and Small Enterprises Facilitation Council, Ludhiana. CL
Fducate has filed a petition sceking setting aside of the Impugned Award. The next date of hearing is scheduled on July 7, 2024.

Bawadia kala shikisha samiti, a lessor has filed a case against the Company in Bhopal for recovery of rent /arrears amounting Rs. 46.88 lacs

(Previous year Rs. 46.88 lacs) for non payment of rent. The Company was engaged a local lawyer who filed necessary application to transfer the

case to New Delhi as the rent agreement has arbitration clause, which states that the matter will b}»d’ecided inNew Delhi. The matter is fixed for
- B

argument on May 13, 2024. /
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Apart from those disclosed above, the Company has certain ongoing litigations involving customers, vendors and employees. Based on legal advice
of in house legal team, the management believes that no material liability will devolve on the Company in respect of these litigations.

Other litigations :

In the financial year 2009-10, the Company had given a franchisee to Ms Monica Oli in the name of Comprehensive Education and [T Training
Institute to provide test preparation services in Dubai (UAFE), In the financial year 2012-13, the Company had terminated the franchise agreement
on account of non-recovery of fees collected by the franchisee from students. At the time of the cancellation of agreement the total amount of
receivables from and payable to Ms Monica Oli were AED 1,019,842 (Rs. 150.88 lacs) and AED 261,318 (Rs. 38.66 lacs) respectively. The
Company had preferred arhitration in the matter and the Hon'ble Arbitrator has passed an award amounting ARD 2,063,267 (equivalent to Rs.
351.37 lacs) in favour of the Company including damages. The Company had obtained the necessary exccution documents from the Delhi High
Court and sent these documents through the Indian Embassy for depositing in the Dubai Courts for execution. The matter was appealed by Ms
Monica Oli in the Delhi High Court and the same ruled in her favour. The Company has appealed the ruling and the same is fixed for hearing in
front of the Division Bench of High Court on August 28, 2024,

Leases
'The Company has applied Ind AS 116 in the vear with the date of initial application of April 01, 2019,

Company as "Lessee"
The Company has significant leasing agreements in respect of operating leases for its various office premises and godowns. These lease
arrangements are for a period berween 12 months to 60 months and include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases,

Lease liabilities
The movement in lease liabilities are as follows :

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 621.31 515.53
Addition during the year 960.87 341.53
Finance cost accrued during the period 112.63 53.73
Payment of lease liabilitics* (386.87) (289.48)
Modification/termination of lease (214.13) -
Closing Balance 1,093.81 621.31
Non-current Lease liabilities 828.62 336.24
Curtent Lease liabilities 265.19 285.07

*Payment of lease liabilities includes payment of principal of lease liabilities amounting of Rs. 274.24 lacs (Previous Year: Rs. 235.75 lacs) and
interest of lease liabilities amounting of Rs. 112.63 lacs {Previous Year: Rs. 53.73 lacs).

‘The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at vear end are as follows :

As on March 31, 2024
Lease Payments Finance Charges Net present Value

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non
cancellable finance leases are payable as follows:

Not later than one year 289.06 23.87 265.19

Later than one year and not later than five vears 903.20 74.58 828.62

Total 1,192.26 98.45 1,093.81
As on March 31, 2023

Lease Payments  Finance Charges Net present Value

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non
cancellable finance leases are payable as follows:

Not later than one year 329.53 44.46 285.07
Later than one year and not later than five yeats 363.88 27.64 336.24
Total 693.41 72.10 621.31
Note: For disclosures in respect of Right-of-use assets refer note 4. //
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®

(i)

Employee benefits

The Company contributes to the following post-cmployment defined benefit plans in India.

Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company makes contributions, determined as a specificd percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees wowards provident fund and state insurance, which are defined
contribution plans. The Company has no ebligations ether than to make the specified contributions, The contributions are charged o the statement of profit and loss as they acerue.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employers contribution to provident fund 168.89 17254
Employers conwibution to state insurance 047 143
169.36 T
Defined Benefit Plan:
Gratuity

The Company operates a post-cmployment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. Plan is governed by the Payment of Gratwity Act, 1972, Under the Gratity Act, employees are catided to specific
benefit at the ime of retirement or termination of the employment on completion of five years or death while in employement. This plun entitles an employee 1 receive half month's salary For
cach year of complered service at the tdme of retirement/exit. The Company contributes 4 trust set up by the Company which further contributes  a policy raken from the Life Insurance
Corporation of India.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognize cach period of service as giving risc w additional employee
benefir entidement and measures each unit separately to build up the finat obligation.

Buased on the actaarial valuation obtained in this cespect, the following table sets oot the status of the gracuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial staements as at
balance sheet date:

As at As at
Match 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net defined benefit (asset) /liability -
Gratuiry TFunded; 37802 309.18
Total employee benefit liabilities 378.02 309.18
Non-current 32408 284.33
Cutrent 53.94 24.85
Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for nert defined benefit (asser) liability and its components:
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Defined benefit Fair value of ~ Net defined benefit  Defined benefic Fair valuc of plan ~ Net defined benefit
obligation plan assets (asser)/ liability obligation assets (asset)/ liability

Balance ar the beginning of the vear 354.29 45.11) 309.18 351 (36.48) 27503
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 75.86 75.86 59.95 - 39.95
[nrerest cost {incomes 24.16 (1.40) 2276 22.36 (L15; 2121

100.02 (1.40) 98.62 82.31 (1.15) 8116
Included in OCI
Remcasurements loss {gains
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- financial assumptions 6.67 - 6.67 (7.25) (°.25)
- experience adjusiment (12.30; - (12.30} 10.76 10.76
Return on plan assets {L.24) 0.03 (1.21) .34 0.03 .37

(6.87) 0.03 (6-84) 3.85 0.03 3.88

Value of plan assets
Contributions paid by the ecmployer (22.31) (22.31) (58.96) (58.96)
Interest cost (income) N

Fund management charges - - 0.45 0.45

Admin charges (3.15) (3.15) - (1.85) (1.85)

Acquisinon adjustment out .11 0.26 u.ts 15.65 .07 9.58

Bencfits paid (29.20) 31.57 237 (37.03) 56.92 .1

(29.31) 6.37 (22.94) (43.38) (7.51) (50.89)

Balance at the end of the year 41813 (40.12) 78.02 3_5429_ - (45.11) 309.18
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended

Match 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Service cost 75.86 39.95

Netinterest cost 2276 21.21

98.62 86

Plan asscts

The plan asscts of the Company are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India through 4 trust managed by the Company in teems of an insurance policy taken to fund obligations of the
Company with respect tw its gratuity plan. The categorics of plan asscts as a percentage of total plan assets is based on information provided by Lifc Insurance Corporation of India with respect
to its investment patiern for Company gratuity fund for investments managed in total for several other companices.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Funds Managed by Insurer (investment with insurer) Vs i 100.00%, 100.00%
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D. Actuarial assumptions
a) Economic assumptions
The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the marker yields available on government bonds at the accounting date with a term that
marches that of labilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and othee relevant factors on long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have
been selected by the Company.,
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate T 7360
Fxpected rate of future salary increase 5,000, 6,000
b) Demographic assumptions
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1} Retitement age (years) 38,00 38.00
iy Morrality rates inclusive of provision for disabilin L00% s of LALM 2012-14)
i) Ages Withdrawal rate {00}
Hxternal/ Internal
Upto 30 years 2.32/1.22-3.008% 2.32/1.22-3.00%
From 31 o 44 years L77/0.90-2.00% 1.77/0.90-2.00%,
Above 4 years 0.14/0.06-1.00% 0.14/0.06-1,00%
E. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actaarial assurnptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefic obligation by the
amounts shown below.
Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not caleutated. Sensitivity as to ratc of inflation, rate of increasc of pensions in payment, rate of increase
of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on reticement.
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
" Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate {0.5% movement) o (24.13) 26.47 20.14) 2208
Expeeted rate of future salary increase (0.5% movement) 2297 (21.41) 19.80 (18.66)
Description of risk exposures:
Valuations are based on cettain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such, the Company is exposed to various risks as follow-
A) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increasc in salary increase rate assumption in futare valuations will also increase the Liability.
B) Investment Risk- [f the plan is funded then asscts liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed ar the last valuation date can impact the
Habilicy,
C) Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
D} Mortality & disability — Aceral deaths & disabiliey cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the Habilities.
i) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.
F. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years
Dutation of defined benefit obligation As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than | year T 53.94 2486
Berween -2 years 525 38.44
Between 2-5 vears 33.01 15.55
Over 5 years 32593 27544
Total _ 418.13 35429
Expected contributions to post-cmployment benefit plans for the following vear is Rs. 121.82 lacs. (March 31, 2023: Rs, 103.76 tacs).
(fii) Other long-term employee benefits:
The Company provides for compensated absences to its employees. The employces can carry-forward a portion of the unatilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service
petiods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-termy employee benefit.
The present value obligation in respect of carned leave is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unic eredit method, which recognizes cach period of service as giving rise
additional unit of employee benefit entitdement and micasures each unit separacely to build up the final obligations.
The present value obligation in respecr of earned leave is determined based on acruarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise
to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separatcly to build up the final obligations. The summarized positions of various defined benefits are as under:
Al Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the follewing table sets cut the status of the compensated absences and the amounts recognized in the Company’s financial statements

as at balance sheet date:

Net defined benefit liability
Farned Leave {unfunded)

Total employee benefit liabilities /

Non-current

Current [

As ar As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i 261.53 24392
. 261.53 24392
187.22 198.61
7431 45.31
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a)

b)

B
i)

iif)

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for nee defined benefit (asser) liability and its components:

As at As at
Match 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Defined benefit obligation

Net defined benefit Hability at the beginning of the year 243.92 226,75
Included in profit or loss

Current service cost 34.78 35.55
Interest cost (income) 18.78 17.03
o 5356
Included in OCI o

Remeasurements loss (gain)

— Actuarial loss (gain; arising from:

- financial assumptions 0.02 0.04;
- Experience Adjustment (14.53) 11.75
Rerurn on plan asscts
(14.51) 11,71
Other
Contributions paid by the employer
Acquisiton adjusrment 9.53 (16.88)
Bencfits paid (30.97) (30.24)
' (21.44) “@7.12)
Net defined benefit lability at the end of the year T 26155 24392
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Service cost 3478 35.55
Net interest cost 1878 17.03
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation (1451) 1.

39.05 64.29

Actuarial assumptions

Economic assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount racc is based upon the market vields available on government bonds at the accounting date with 4 term that
matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rare takes into account of inflation, seniority, promodon and other relevant factors on long term basis. Valuation assumptions arc as follows which have
been selected by the Company.

As at As ar
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.22% 7.36%
Expeeted rate of future salaty increase 6.00% 6.00%
Demographic assumptions
=5 As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Retirement age (years) 58.00 58.00
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100%s of TALM (2012-14)
Ages Withdrawal rate (o) Withdrawal rate (S0)
Upto 30 years 00-3% 00-3%
From 31 to 44 years 2-2.33% 2-2.33%
Above 44 years 0-1% 0-1%0

Expected contributions to post-cployment benefit plans for the vear ending March 31, 2024 is Rs. 50.43 lacs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 66.25 lacs).
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 18.34 vears (March 31, 2023; 18.72 years).

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the obligation by the amounts shown
below.

Sensitivity due o mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not ealculated. Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase
of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on tetirement,

As at o As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase Decrease Increase De_crease )
Discount tate (0.5% movement) ®.50) = 9.18 (®.10) 873
Expected rate of futare salary increase ((1.5% movement) 9.24 8.04) 8.81 8.24)

Description of risk exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dvnamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follow

) Salary Increases- Actual salary increascs will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salaty increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

B) Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then asscts liabilitics mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the Kabilicy.
C) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liabiliry.

D} Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

[ . N . . . — . . T
E} Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates prt ubseguenrvaltations can impact Plan’s liabilitv.

o
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E. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Particulars

Duration of defined benefit obligation
Less than | year

Berween [-2 years

Berween 2-5 years

Over 5 years

Total

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
w432 45.31
464 19.30
52.46 1142
130,12 137.69
2615+ 24392

48 Related parties
The related parties as per the terms of Ind AS-24,”Related Party Disclosures”, (speciticd under section 133 of the Companies J\ct, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companics {Accounts) Rules, 2015
are disclosed below:-
Al Name and description of relationship of the related party
Direct Subsidiarties Name of the Company | Country of % of Holding as at | % of Holding as at |
Incorporation March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Carcer Launcher Foundation India 100% | 100%- =]
(Carecr Launcher Private Limited India 9% 199%
ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited India Tlevsr. 169.50%
(Iarccr_lmunchcr Infrastructure Private Limited India 1000, ) | L0
Kestone CL Asia Hl;lb_])l’c. Linuted i Sin_._digol'ﬁ 99.907 ¢ 99.94%, |
CI. Singapore Hub Pre. Limited (w.c.f August 16, 2023) Sinrapore _‘)9.‘)8". u NA
Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consuling Private Limited éw.e.f 38920, 11.72%
| |l"cbru;lr\‘ 17, 2024 India |
[Indirect Subsidiaries /Name of the Company Country of | % of Holding as at | % of Holding as at
Incorpotation March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|Suhisidiaries of Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte. Limited
[Kestone CI, US Limited USA 100% i
C1. Bducate (Aftica) Lid imur;gi.,s 90%4 90 B
| - _|PT. Kestone CLE Indonesia (w.e.f January 4, 2023) [Ind(mcsia 110% [ 1o0%.,
Enterprises in which key management personnel or |Bilakes Consulting Private Limited, India
their relatives are able to exercise significant
influence
Key management pa;om (KMP) Mr. Satya Narayanan R {Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Gautam Puri (Vice Chairman and Managing Dircctor) |
M. Nikhil Mahajan (Exccative Director and CEO Enterprise Business)
Ms. Madhumita Ganguli (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Me. Girish Shivani (Non-Exceutive Independent Director)
Mr. Sanjay Tapriya (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr. Piyush Sharma (Non-Execuiive Independent Direcror)
Mr. [mwran Jafar (Non-Executive Non-Independent Director)
Mr. Arjun Wadhwa {Chief Financial Officer)
Mrs. Rachna Sharma (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)
Relatives of KMP Mr. R Sreenivasan
- My, R Shivakumar ]
B. |Transactions during the year : Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i |Sale of services
Subsidiary Companies
- Keswone CL Asia Hub Pre Limited 468.67 505.09 |
46867 505.09 |
i |Sale of products
Subsidiary Companies
- Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited 263.17 43,48
| - ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited . - T34
| L 263.17 50.82 |
iii JOther Income
a. Interest on loans
Subsidiary Companies
- Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited 1.55 62.94
1.53 62.94
v [Sale of Intangibles assets under development
Subsidiary Companies
Kestone CL Asia Fub Pee Limited | 178.71 436.67 |
“crata 178.71 436.67
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B. |Transactions during the year: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
v |Putchase of traded goods
Subsidiary Companies
- Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Timited ,7600.97 I,GG().Z_T
1,760.97 1,660.27
vi |Other expenses
Subsidiary Companies
a. Material development and printing expenses
- Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Private Iimited 117.34 12213
b. Project expenses
- ICE Gate Educational Instirute Private Limited 65.91 -
- 183.25 - 122.13
vii |Employee benefits expense
Key management personnel
Short term employee benefits:
- Mr. Gautam Puri 182.00 155.69
- Mr. Satya Naravanan R 182.00 155.69
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan L1019 142.61
- Mr. R Sreenivasan 35.67 45.80
- Mcr. Shiva Kumar Ramachandran T3.95 69.2%
- Me. Arjun Wadhwa 64.91 539.24
- Mrs. Rachria Sharma 35.59 3149
Post employment benefits:
- Mr. Gautam Puri 1.06
- Mr. Satya Naravanan R .02 0.73 |
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 096 0.66
Other long term benefits
- Mr. Gautam Puri 292 6.54
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 3.56 705
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 0.77 5.24
693.54 681.08
viii |Reimbursement of expense from related parties
Subsidiary Companies
- Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited 3.30) 17.46
- ICE Gatc Educational Instinate Private Limited - 8.33
-CLL Educate {Africa Lid 4.59 -
7.89 25.79
ix |Reimbursement of expense to related parties
Subsidiary Companies
- Kestone CLL Asia Hub Pte Limited 0.75 75.60
- ICE Gate Educational Institute Drivare Limited 20.17 -
20.92 75.60 |
x  |Conversion of interest into loan
Subsidiary Companies
- Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limired 11582
115.83
xi |Repayment of loan given
Subsidiary Companies
- Carecr Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited 28110 965,18
- ICE Gate Educational Institute Pve.led 42,00 1
323.10 965.18 |
xii |Receivables converted into Investment made during the year
Subsidiary Companies
- Kestone CL Asia FHub Pee Limited 7394 839.07
731.94 839.07
xiii |Commission to non-executive Directors
- Mrs. Madhumita Ganguli 7.3y 2,00
- Mr. Girish Shivani 903 290
- Mr. Sanjay TFapriya 8,59 2.50
Mr. Piyush Sharma 5.59 .80
L - 30.60 8.20 |
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| B. [Transactions duting the year: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
| xiv |Purchase of agsets /intangible asset
|Subsidiary Companies S—
- Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited L4400 144,00
xv |Purchase of investments
Subsidiary Companies -
- PT. Kestone CLE Indonesia Limited 2.54
|
xvi |Sale of investments
Subsidiaty Companies _‘
- Carcer Launcher Private Limited (refer note 9) 2000
xvii |Exceptional items |
Subsidiary Companies
- ICE Gate Educational Tnstitute Privare Limited (refer note Y) (197.24) 296.00
xviii Receipt on behalf of other
- Carcer Launcher Foundation 4.54 2.84 |
xix |Amount paid towards CSR expenditure |
- Career Launcher Foundation | - 49.73 |
C. |Related party balances as at the year end: As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Subsidiary Comjranies |
Current Loans
- Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited 281.10
- ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited 5745 99.45
Orther receivables from related parties: [
- Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited 41,68
- ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited 6845 65.44
- Carcer Launcher Private Limited 0.06
- Carcer Launcher Foundation 13.87 18.41
-CL Educate {Africa) Ltd 4.59
Interest accrued but not due on loans given
- Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Privare Limited - 56.65
Advances to suppliers
- Kestone CT. US Limited 39.56 39.56
- ICE Gatc Fducational Institute Private Timited 118
- Carcer Launcher Private Limired 0.40 -
- Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Timited - 125.65
Trade Receivable
- Kestone CLL Asia Hub Pre. Limited 678.48 870,67
- [CE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited 812 20,18
- Carcer Launcher Infrastructure Privace Limited 489.56 298 84
Trade payables
- Kestone CLL Asia Hub Pte. Limited 59.68 316.11
- Carcer Launcher Infeastructure Private Limited 535.87 245.56
- Kestone CIL US Limited 18.95
Enterprises in which KMP and their relatives are able 1o exercise significant influence
Other Advances
- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited 61.31 61.3t
Key management personnels
Short term employee benefits:
- Mr. Gantam Puri &1.13 61.93
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R §1.48 63.33
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 7400 5907
Post employment benefits:
- M, Gautam Pun 20,00 2000
- Mr, Satya Narayanan R 15.01 13.99
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 4.1 13.15
Other long term benefits
- Mr, Gautam Puri 4417 +41.25
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 43.36 39.79
| - Mr. Nikhil Mahajan /"— +41.77 41.00
oo~
(
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Terms and Conditions:

i. The transactions with telated partics are made on terms equivalent o those that prevail in arm's length transactions and are ar market value,

ii. Corrent loans are repayable on demand. The aforesaid loan other than given to ICE Gate Hducational Instirate Private Limited bears interest rate ranges from 8.25% to 9.30% (Previous year :
from 8.25% to 11.55%%). The accrued interest on loan is added to the loan amount at the end of eveny financial vear, when it comes due.

During the previous year, post detailed assessment done by the Company, a charitable trust by the mame of Career Launcher Education Foundation (“CLEI™ has eeased to be a Relaed
Party from O1-April 2021 post resignation of one of its trustees who was carier an employee of CL Hducate Limited (*Company™. Post the resignation of the above-mentioned employee,
Company no longer has any influence on the trust since 2 out of its total 3 rrustees are not associated with the Company. In addition to chis, the Company also doesn’t have any control over
appointment of curtent/ future trustees. During the year the Company caried out the following transactions with the trust:

A} Repayment of certain previous loan given and interest thereof: Nil (Peevious year: Rs, 61,12 lacs)

B} Toan written-off: Nil (Previous Year: Rs, [,214.60 lacs) (Refer Note 18)

€ Purchase of Intangible assets: Nil (Previous vear :Rs. 80 lacs)

Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two per cent
of the average nee profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial vears in accordance with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the vear are as under:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the vear.

B. Amount spent duting the vear on:

- Construction/ acquisition of any asset

- On purposes other than (i) above 49.73
C. The amaunt of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount required to be spent by the Company during the vear;

1. The total of previous vears’ shortfall amouonrs;

E. The reason for above shortfalls by wav of a note; -
F. The nature of CSR activitics undertaken by the Company.

G. The Company has excess amount of Nil (March 31, 2023: Nil) to be carried forward and set off against the requirement to spend under sub-

section (5) of section 135 up to immediate succeeding three financial vears.

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per Ind AS 24, - 49.73
Related Party Disclosures.

The arcas for CSR activitics arc promoting cducation. There being no CSR obligation pertaining to the financial vear 2023-24, no funds were atilized /disbursed towards its CSR.

In terms of the clause 22 of chapter V micro, small and Medium enterprises development Act 2006 (MSMEID act 2006), the disclosure of payments duc to any supplier are as follows:

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
The principal amount and the interest duc thereon remaining unpaid w any supplier as at the end of each accounting
period included in
Principal amount duc o any supplicr 76.84 83.15
Interest due on above -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED ACT 2006 along with the amounts of the - -
payment made to the supplier bevond the appointed day during cach accounting period
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the - -
appointment day during the periad) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006,
The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting period - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, untl such dare when the interest - -

dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise tor the purpose of disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of
the MSMED Act 2006.

The Company has in the past undertaken various Central and State Government / Agencies, projects in the education / skill development scctor. Most of these projects are complete, however
the dues from the concerned department / agency has not been realized mainly on account of delays and long process. The derails of such vocational wade reccivables which are outstanding for
2 considerable periud of time are given below, In the opinion of the management it has made the necessary provision, wherever required and such balances are fully recoverable. The details of
amount recoverable are as under :

Vocational trade receivables Total Amount Amount o/s. for | Expected Credit Amount of write off
more than J years Loss (ECL)
(out of total Provision on
amount) outstanding amount
As at March 31, 2024 I - -l - 215.13
As at March 31, 2023 | 215.13 2153 142.46)
o
2
."J i "
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52 Share based payments
Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Board of Dircetors and Members of the Company ar their respeetive meetings held on March 6, 2008 and March 31, 2008, the Company introduced its
ESOP Plan currenty in force, with the name “Career Fauncher Employee Stock Options Plan 20087 (hereinafeer the “Plan”™ or “Scheme™), which provided for the grant of upto 250,000
options (Convertible into 2,350,000 cquity shates of face value of Rs. 10 each) to employees of the Company and its subsidiarics.
Pursuant to the resolutions passed by Board of Ditcctors and Members of the Company ar their respective meetings held on August L, 2014 and September 5, 2014, the Company made
amendments to the Plan, and changed its name 1 "Amended Carcer Launcher Employee Stwock Optons Plan 2008™, Further amendments were made o the Plan vide resolutions passed by the
Board of Dircetors and Members of the Company at their respective meetings held on Janaary 29, 2016 and March 22, 2016, whereby the Company re-named the Plan as "Amended and
Restated Career Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan 20147, The Company renews and extends the term of the Plan as the need ariscs, from time to fime. Accordingly, the Plan was renewed
and extended for a period of 4 years i.c., frum September 5, 2021 to September 4, 2025 by the Members of the Company at the 25th Annual General Meedng held on September (07, 2021,
As on March 31, 2022, 3,353,050 number of optons (1,67,523 numbcr of options before the Sub-Division of cach Equity Share of Rs. 10/- into 2 Equity Shares of Rs. 3/- each, w.e.f. October 1,
20215 remained to be granted under the Plan (March 31, 2021: 167,525 number of options of Rs. 10 ¢ach).
The Board of Dircerors of the Company and sharcholders at their respective meetings held on May 19, 2022, and Seprember 15, 2022, have approved an increase in the HSOP Pool under the
existing Plan by an additional 5,010,000 options {convertible into 500,000 (Five Takh) cquity sharcs of face value of Rs.5/- each, fully paid-up}.
Purther pursuant to a Bonus Issue of Equity Shares of the Company in the rato of L:1, via approval of the sharcholders of the Company by way of Postal Ballot dated December 04, 2022, the
ourstanding number of options under the Plan doubled from 8,350,50 to 16,70,100.
As un March 31, 2024, 16,70,100 number of options (March 31, 2023:16,70,100 number of options) were outstanding under the Plan.
Note: Under the Plan, the options that are forfeited, lapsed or terminated, are pooled back and can be granted again, It is hereby confirmed that at no point of time did the total number of
options granted under the Plan execeded 16,70,100.
During the year, the Company has granted 95,370 options (Previous year: 1,29,828). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee as well 2s Board of Dircctors did, however, approved the
allocation of Options under the Plan to identified employees of the Company and its Subsidiarics, and approved the Terms of Grant, Vesting and Hxercise of the Options at their respective
Mectings held on June 22, 2023,
a. Details of options outstanding at the year end with the range of exercise price and weighted average remaining contractual life:
Employees entitled No. of options Vesting conditions Weighted Contractual life of options (in year)
March 31, 2024 137,508 3 years' scrvice from the grant date 3
March 31, 2023 1N4,546 3 years' service from the grant date 3
b. Reconciliation of outstanding share options:
The number and weighred-average exercise prices of share options under the share option plans are as follows:
ESOP to petson other than directors of the Company
Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Weighted Average  Number of options  Weighted Average Number of options
exercise price per share exercise price per
option share option
Outstanding a1 the beginning of the year 1457 104,546 -
Granted during the year 12,55 95,370 14,57 129,828
Exercised during the year 14.57 33,556 -
Forfeited during the year - -
Expired during the year 1270 28,852 14.57 25,282
Outstanding at the end of the year 13.56 137,508 14.57 104,546
o Fair value of options granted:
The fair value at grant datc is determined using the Black Scholes Model. Expected volatility has been determined using historical fluctuation in share issuc prices of the Company.
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Dividend yield - -
Hxpected volatility (%)% 47.44% 56.64%0
Risk-free interest rate (%o) TA20 6.60%
Weighted average share price (in Rs.) 49.15 62.28
Excrcise price {in Rs.) 14.00 14.00
Carrying amount of liability-included in employee benefit obligations 4408 35.00
* The expected voladliy is determined on the historical closing share prices of the Company for a period of the past year from the grant date,
d. Expense atising from share-based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from sharc-based payment transactions recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of employee benefit expensc is Rs. 27.47 laes (Previous year : Rs. 35.00 lacs).

(This space has been intentinnally left blank )
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Additi latory i required by Schedule IIT

Other statutory information's

- The Company does not have any Benami properry, where any proceeding has been initiared or peading against the Geeup for holding any Benami property,

ii. The Company does aor have any rransactions with companies struck off.

ifi. The Company dacs not have any charges or satistaction which is yer to be registered with ROC bevend rhe smturory peried.

he Company have not traded or invested in Crypto cuereney or Virtual Currency durirg the tinaneial vear.

v Phe Campany have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to ans other petson(s; or entity

+a, direetly or fndirecrly lend or invest in orher persans or entities idenrified in am manner wharsoever |

by provide anv guarancee, security or the fike fo or on behalf of the U

vi. The Company have nor received any fund from anv personds, or enitgties), including foreign entitics Funding Parry) with the anderstanding sehether recorded ir

ta direetds or indircetly lend or investin other persons or enriries identified in ; ay manner whatsoever by or en behalf of the Company (U ldmare

i provide any guaramee, securiry or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimaze Beneficiaries

s, search or sury

v or any other relevant pravisions of the Income Tas Act, 1961
viii. M tirle deeds of Immovable Property are held in che naine of the Company.
ix. The Company has nor been declared a4 willful defaatrer by any bank or financial insritution or ather lender 15 defined

defaulrers issued by rhe Reserve Bank of India.

11 the number of layers prescribed ender clause 47}

. The Company has complied w

Financial Ratios

or on behalf of the Company (T ltimate Beneficiaries) or

Beneficiaries) or

The Company have nor am such transaction which is ror recorded in the baoks of accounts thar has been surrendered or disclosed 18 tncome during the vear in the rax assessments ander the Income |

- including forcign catiries (ntermediaris; with the understanding thac the Intermediary shall

writing o otherwises that the Company shalt

= Aer, [961 rsuch

under the Companies \et, 2013) or consorrium rhereaf, in accordance with the guidclines on willfa!
J E

«af section 2 af the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Lavees; Rules, 2017,

Ratio Numcrator D i Unit 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 % variance Reason for variance

Current ratio® Current assets Carrent liabi Thnes 245 242 121%  Norapplicable, variance is below the threshold.

Debt- Equity Ratio Toral Debt Sharcholder's Equity Titnes wH 006 8099 The company has strategieally urilized Cash Credic
exefer nore | below, facilities w support its day-ro-day operations within the

MarTech segment. This proacrive approach fed o an
increased vear-end balanee in these facifities compared 10
the previous vear, deiven by the successtul execution of
ey projects in March 2024,

Additionally, the company conduered a burback worth
Rs. 8.3 crore during the vear, along with associared
expenses of Rs. 2 crore. While chis reduced the equir by
approsimarely Rs. 1 crore, resalting i a higher Debr-
to- Fquity /D/E; ratio.

Imporantly, on a ner debe basis, the company continucs
m remain debr-free, showeasing its strong financial
health and prodent management,

Debt Service Coverage ratio Harnings for debt service = Debe serviee Times 19.02 303 82787™% The increase in revenue, combined with the cost
Nert profit after taxes + Nonr  refer ante 3 below, efficiencies achieved during the vear, has significandy
cash operating expenses enhanced the company's earnings. This improvement
irefer nore 2 below, has strengthened the company's abiliny to service its debr

obligarions and has positizely impacted its Debr Service
Caverage Ratio /DICR).

Retoemn on Equity ratio Net Profits afrer caxes — Average Sharcholder’s “h EXIAN +970h 2747%  In the previous financial vear, the company beneficed

Preference Dividend from cereain one-time deferred tax reversals, which were
not available his year. This led ro a lower Profir After
“Fax for the current financial vear, and consequently, the
Return on Equiry rario decreased by 1.36"5. Despite
this, the company's underlying performance remains
strong, reflecting is commitment to sustainable growth
and
vale ereation for our investors,

Inventory Turnover ratio* Cost of goods sold Average laventory Times 109 111 -2.02%%  Nor applicable, variance is below the threshold,

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio*  Net credic sales = Gross Average Trade Receivable Times 443 438 119 Not applicable, variance is below the theeshold.
credir sales - sales return
srefer note 4 below)

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio¥  Ner credir puechases = Average T'rade Payables Tines 0.53 060 1149 Nor applicable, varfance is below the rhreshaold.

Gross credir purchases -
purchase return

Net Capital Turnover Ratin* Ner sales = Toral sales - Working capirai = Current assers — Times 2.34 204 1146%  Nort applicable, variance s below the threshold.
sales rerurn Carrent liabilities

Net Profit ratio Ner Profi Net sales = Toral sales  sales return o 3317 A88"a -3208%  The company has strategically invested in developing

new products and expanding ies geographical reacl,
andcipating  substantial rewards in the upcoming
quarters,

As a resul, despite a norable 9% increase in revenue,
margins were slighrly subdued this period.

Return on Capital Employed* Harnings before inrerest and - Capital Employed Yo 329 526" 631" Noc applicable. variance is below the threshold.
mxes rrefer nore 6 below;

“refer note 5 below)
Return on Investment® Inrerese (Finance [ncome) Invesrment “h O Norapplicable, variance is below the threshold.

* In accordance with the requirements, changes in ratios of more than 25% as compared to previous year have been explained.
Note

1. Toral debes eonsists of botrawings and lease liabilies.

2, Harning available tor debr service

3. Debr service = Interest + paymenr tor lease liabil
4 Credit sales = Toral Revenue + opening unbilled revenue - closing unbilled revenue - opening deferred revenue + closing deferred reven

ies + principal repavimencs.

3. Farnings before interest and raxes = profit before rax + finance cost

6. Capital Emploved

. \verage is caleulated based on simple opening and elos

werage tangible net worth + Total debr + Deferred tax.

g balances.
Schedule 11 require explanation where the change in the ratio Is more than 25% as compared ro the preceding year,

profi tor the vear + depreciation, amortization and impairment + finance cost + provision for dobeful debte + share based K

yment to empioyees + non cash charges.
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54.  Fair value ent and fi ial inser

a  Financial instruments — by category and fair values hietarchy
The following table shows the carrving amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilitics, including heir Tevels in the fair value hicrarchy.

As at March 31, 2024

[Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using
| FVIPL | FVOCI | Amortised cost Total Level] | LevelZ | Level 3

Financial assets - -

Non-cutrent

Investments in subsidiaries and associate 5,480.19 5,480.19

Invesmients - others - 4000 40.00

Other financial agsees - 1,087.44 1,087.44

Curtent

Trade receivables - 6,387.48 6,587.48

Cash and cash equivalenes 1,969.89 1,969.89

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6,138.19 6,138.19

loans - 141.75 141.75 -

Other financizal assets 1,978.46 1,978.46 - -

Total - 2342340 23,423.40 - - -

Financial Habilities [

Non-cutrent

Borrowings 91.39 91.59 -

T.case liability 824.62 828.62 -

Current

Borrowings 1,750.55

Lease liability 265.19

Trade payable< 3,360.18 3,560.18

Other financial liabilitics 67212 672.12

Total - - 7,168.25 7,168.25 - - |

As at March 31, 2023

[Particulars o Catrying value Fait value using

FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised cost Total Levell | Level2 | Level 3

Financial assets

Non-current

Investments in subsidiaries and associate - 461797 4,617.97 - -

Investments AL00 40.00 -

Orther financial assets - 4,592.26 4,592.26 -

Current

Investiments - - -

Trade receivables 6,230.22 6,230.22

Cash and cash equivalents - 70192 701.92

Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents - - 3,865.78 3,865.78

Loans - 469.45 469.45 |

Other financial asscts 1,623.28 1,623.28

Total - - 22,140.88 22,140.88 - - -

Financial liabilities i il

Non-cutrent

Borrowings - 69.52 69.52

Lease liability - - 336.24 336.24

Current

Borrowings 934.96 934.96

Lease lability 285457 285.07 -

Trade pavables - 3,141.98 3,141.98

Other financial liabilities - 779.75 779.75 - - |

Total B - 5,547.52 5,547.52 - - -

The Company’s borrowings have been contracted at foating rates of interest, which resets at short intervals. Accordingly, the earrying value of such botrowings (including intercst acerued but not due)

approximates far value,

The carrving amounts of trade receivables, trade pavables, cash and cash cquivalents and other financial assets and Habilitics, approximates the fair values, due to their short-term nature. Fair value of non-

current financial
between carrying value and fair value.

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

sets which includes bank deposits {due for maturity after twelve months from the reporting dated and security deposits is similar to the carrving value as there is no significant differences

Specific valuation techniques used to value non current financial assets and liabilities for whom the fair values have been determined based on present values and the appropriate discount rates of the
Company ar cach balance sheet date, The discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of borrowings of the Company at each balance sheet date,

b Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments;

» Credit risk;
= Liquidity tisk; and
= Market risk

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk

Exposure atising from

Measurement

Management

Credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, trade reccivables, loans
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Aging analysis

Diversificarion of bank deposits and
control an credit management system

Liquidity risk

Other financial liabilities

Fund management and forecasting

Availability of surplus funds including
borrowings

Market risk

Other financial assets and liabilitics

Toreign exchange rates

Budgeting and forecasting

Risk management framework

The Company's Buard of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of Directors have authorised senior management
to establish the processes and ensure control over risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework in line with the businesses of the Company.

The Company’s tisk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, o set appropriate [
management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities,

Lgontrols, to monitor risks and adherence o limits. Risk
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b. Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Credir risk

The maximum expusure o credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Trade reccivables ) N 6,587.48 6,230.22
Cash and cash cquivalents 1,969.89
Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6,138.19
l.oans 141,75 469.45
Other financial assers - 3,065.90 6,215.54

This note explains the sourees of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity

manages the risk.

Category Description of category

Basis of

ition of exp

d loss p

Loans

g
Other financials assets

Trade receivables

[Financial assets - high and low risk

Assets with sufticient capacity to meet

the obligations

12-month expected
credit loss

12-month expecred
credit loss

Lifetime expected eredit loss

Expected credit loss:

Particulars

Category Description of Asset group Gross  camrying  |Expected probability | Expected credit losses [Carrying amount net of
category amount impairment
[2-month c;pcctcd credit loss - [ligh and low | Assets with sufficient Loans 141.75 0.00%% - 14175
risk capacity to meet the Other financial assets 3,063.90 0.00% - 3,063.90
obligations |
Lifetime expected credit loss | Frade receivables 6,825.48 i 3.49% (238.00) (),587.48_

Credit risk is the dsk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from
customers. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the masimum credit exposure.

The Company's credir risk is primarily o the amount due from customers. The Company maintains a defined credit policy and monitors the cxposures to these eredit risks on an ongoing basis.

i. Credit risk on loans is Timited as the loans are given to other related parties.

il. Credit risk on cash and cash cquivalents is hmited as the Company invests in deposits with scheduled commerdial banks with high eredit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies. The cash and cash
equivalents are held with bank and financial institution, counterpartics which are rated AN to AAA from renowned rating agencics.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue carned from customers primatily located in India, The
Company does monitor the economic envitonment in which it operates and the Company manages its Credit tisk throngh credic approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoting eredit worthiness of

customers o which the Compaay grants credit terms in the normal course af business.

On adoption of Tnd AS 109, the Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in tespect of trade receivable and other financial assets. The management uses a simplified
approach {i.c. based on lifetime ECL) for the purpose of impaitment loss allowance, the Company estimates amounts based on the business environment in which the Company operates, and management considers that
the trade reccivables are in defadlt (credit inpaired) when counterparey fails to make paymenes for receivable within the credi period allowed. [towever the Company based upon historical expetience determine an

impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

The gross carrving amount of tade receivables is Rs. 6,825.48 lacs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 6,473.42 lacs). Trade teceivables are generally realised within the credit petiod.

The Campany believes that the unimpaired amounes thar are past due by maore than the credit period allowed are still collectible in £ull, based on historical payvment behavior.

The Company's exposure to credi risk for trade receivables are as follows:

Gross carrving amount

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023

Not Due B 333352 | 4062.90

0-3 months past due 1,142.28

3-6 months past due 594.40

6 monehs to 1 years 809.48

1-2 years 508,63

2-3 vears 147.29 136.30

More than 3 vears 289.88 505,15
| Total 6,825.48 6,473.42 |

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables:

N . For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 -‘

Balance at the beginning of year 243.20 275,75 |
| Impairment loss recognised 39.24 25.38

Ltilisation/reversal of opening provision {44.44 (57.93)

Balance at the end of the year 238.00 243.20 |

(This space bas hoew intentionally feft blauk)
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b. Financial risk management (continued)

(iiy Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilidies that are sertled by delivering
financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as

notmal and stressed conditons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash fincluding bank deposits under lien and the anticipated future intern
enable it to meet its future known obligations in the vrdinary course of business.

Prudene liquidity risk management implies muintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through
obligations when due. The Company's policey is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maint
companies to meet its liquidity requitements in the short and long rerm.

The Company’s liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:

- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash fows to ensure thar requirements can be met.

- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of Enancial liabilities at the reporting date.

cash or another
ar as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under both

ally generated funds from operations will

an adequate amount of credit facilities w0 meet
ains sufficient reserves of cash and funding from group

As at March 31, 2024 Carrying amount Contractual cash flows
Total Less than one | Between one More than § |
year year and five years
years
Nou-current borrowings
Secured
-From banks
a) Viehicle loans 38.33 88.33 27.91 60.42
b) Term loans -
-From others/ financial institution
a} V'ehicle loans 31.17 317 3117
b} Term loans -
Current borrowings
Secured
-Cash credir from banks 1,722.28 1,722.28 1,722.28
-Interest accrued but not due on bertowings 0.36 0.36 0.36
Trade pavables 3,560.17 3,560.17 3,560.17
Tease Liabilides (current and non curzeng 1,093.82 1.093.82 265.20 828.62 -
Other financial liabilities
Unpad dividend 2.54 2.54 2.54
Payable for selling shareholders 2806 28.06 28.06 -
Payable tor property, plant and equipment -
Employee related payables 628.19 628.19 628.19 -
Receipt on behalf of clients 13.33 13.33 13.33 - |
Total 7,168.25 7,168.25 6,248.04 | 920.21 -]
["As at March 31, 2023 Carrying amount Contractual cash flows
T Total Less than one | Between one More than 5
year year and five years
yeats
Borrowings
Secured
-From banks
a3 Vehicle loans 95.45 95.45 2593 69.52
b) Term loans 56.51 56.51 36.51
_ -P'rom others/financial institution
a) Term loan
Current borrowings
Secured
-Cash credit from banks 851.70 851.70 851,70
-Interest accrued but not due un borrowings 0.82 0.82 0.82 -
Trade payables 3,141.98 3.141.98 3,141.98
Lease Tiabilities {curtent and non current) 621.31 621.31 285.07 336.24
Other financial liabilities
Unpaid dividend 2.56 256 256 -
Payable for selling shareholders 28.06 28.06 28.06 -
Employee related payables 701.46 N1.46 70146
Payable tor property, plant and equipment 18.06 18.06 18.06 -
Receipt on behalf of clients 29.61 2961 20.61
| Total 5,547.52 5,547.52 5,141.76 | 405.76 -
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B. Financial risk management (continued)

iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency tisk and other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of market risk namely: currency
risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company
is exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows to the extent of
earnings and expenses in foreign currencies. Exposure arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other
currencies from the Company's operating, investing and financing activities.

There are no derivative contracts entered by the Company. Hence, there is no associated risk.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary of quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as at March 31, 2024 and March
31, 2023 are as below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024
AED INR USD INR
Financial assets
Trade receivables 43.88 997.00 - -
Other financial asset 0.69 15.70 - -
44.57 1,012.70 - -
Financial liabilities
Trade payables and other Liabilities 3.63 82.37 - -
3.63 82,37 - -
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and liabilities 40.94 930.33 - -
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
AED INR UsD INR
Financial assets
Trade receivables 43.06 963.77 0.06 4.53
Other financial asset 1.17 26.28 - -
Other bank balances - - - -
44.23 990.05 0.06 4.53
Financial liabilities
Trade payables and other Liabilities 1.46 32,77 - -
1.46 32.77 - -
Net exposure in respect of recognised assets and liabilities 42.77 957.28 0.06 4.53
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Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 would have
affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other vatiables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
(in Rs. Lacs) (in Rs. Lacs)
Strengthenin Strengthening | Weakenin Strengthenin, Weakenin
gt g g g £ g g g

1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian
Rupees against following foreign currencies:

For the year ended Match 31, 2024

AED 9.30 (9.30) 6.77 (6.77)
Ush - - - -
Total 9.30 (9.30) 6.77 (6.77)
For the year ended March 31, 2023

AED 9.57 9.57) 6.96 (6.96)
USD 0.05 (0.05) 0.03 0.03)
Total 9.62 (9.62) 6.99 (6.99)

AED: United Arab Emirates Dirham and USD: United States Dollar

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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. Financial risk management (continued)

Matket tisk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates. The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term and short term borrowings with variable interest rates, which

expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the cash credit facility from banks carrying floating rate of interest. These
obligations exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes

as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash credit from banks 1,722.28 851.70

Total 1,722.28 851.70

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity
and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Particulars

Profit or loss

Equity, net of tax

50 bps increase

50 bps decrease

50 bps increase

50 bps decrease

Interest on cash credit from banks
For the year ended March 31, 2024
For the year ended March 31, 2023

5.24
2.61

(5.19)
(2.61)

3.79
1.88

(3.79)
(1.88)

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in ordet to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company

manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics

of the undetlying assets.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total
capital (equity attributable to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings (refer note 23 and 27) 1,842.14 1,004.48
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 1,969.89 701.92
Adjusted net debt (A) (127.75) 302.56
Total equity (B) 26,792.93 26,852.19

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B)

-0.48%

1.13%

Dividends

The company has not paid or declared any dividend during the year ended March 31 2024 (March-31.2023 : Nil).
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56 Income tax
A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax expense
Current year 257.25 302.45
Tax related o priot years (3.34) -
25391 302.45
Deferred tax
Cutrent year 121.33 (311.63)
121.33 (311.65)
Total tax (reversal) / expense 375.24 (9.20)
B. Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
- Income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans (1.80) (.94
(1.80) 0.94
C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rate# Amount Rate# Amount
Profit before tax 27.82% 1,342.29 27.82% 1,321.55
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (A) 37343 367.66
Tax effect of:
Permanent difference
-Non- Deductible expenses 5.23 (420.25)
-Others 0.08) 24.85
Impact of change in rate of rax - -
Tax adjustments relating to earlier years (3.34) 18.54
Total (B) 1.81 (376.86)
Tax expense recognise in standalone statement of profit and loss (A)+(B) 375.24 (9-20)
# includes surcharge
(This space has been intontionally left blank)
\'.
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Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred Tax Assets
Trade receivable
Decemed equity and other comprehensive income
Lease liability
Provision for employee benefit
Provision for employee incentive
Trade payable
Other current liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and investment property
Other financial liabilities
Carried forward losses and MAT
Sub- Total (a)

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Praperty, plant and equipment and investment property
Right of use assets
Other intangible assets
Investment in subsidiary & associates
Other non-current assets
Provision on inventory

Sub- Total (b)

Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)-(b)

Year ended March 31, 2024

As at Recognized in Recognized in OCI As at
March 31, 2023 P&L March 31, 2024

67.65 1.44 - 66.21
2533 - - 25.33
172.85 (131.46) - 304.31
153.50 (25.80) 1.80 177.50
127.55 32.34 - 95.21
- 20.00) - 20.00
23.89 (10.48) - 34.37

7.70 7.70 - -
34.01 33.36 - 1.25
1,081.73 44.56 1,037.17
1,694.81 (68.34) 1.80 1,761.35
- 0.62) 0.62
146.00 (137.65) - 283.65
167.31 (42.87) - 210,18
9.15 - - 9.15

2.64 2.64 - -
16.33 (11.17) - 7.50
341.43 (189.67) - 531.10
1,353.38 121.33 1.80 1,230.25

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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. Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred Tax Assets

Loans

Trade Receivable

Deemed Equity and Other Comprehensive Income
Lease liability

Provision for Employce Benefits

Provision for Employee Incentives

Other curtent liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and investment property
Other financial liabilities

Carried forward losses and MAT

Sub- Total (a)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Right of use Assets

Other Intangible Assets

Asset held for Sale

Investment in subsidiary and associates
Other non-curtent assets

Provision on inventory

Other current assets

Sub- Total (b)

Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)-(b)

Year ended March 31, 2023

As at Recognized in Recognized in OCI As at
March 31, 2022 P&L March 31, 2023

8.00 8.00 - -
77.00 9.35 - 67.65
53.00 27.67 - 25.33
143.00 (29.85) - 172.85
139.00 (13.56) 0©.94) 153.50
128.00 0.45 - 127.55
28.00 4.11 - 23.89
31.00 23.30 - 7.70
- (34.61) - 34.61
1,163.78 82.05 1,081.73
1,770.78 76.91 (0.94) 1,694.81
118.00 (28.00) - 146.00
128.00 (39.31) - 167.31

378.00 378.00 - -
72.00 62.85 - 9.15
5.00 2.36 - 2.64
19.00 2.66 - 16.33

10.00 10.00 - -
730.00 388.56 - 341.43
1,040.78 (311.65) (0.94) 1,353.38

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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During the tinancial year 2017-18, Career Launcher Education Infrastructure and Services Limited (CLEIS), then, a wholly owned subsidiary (Pursuant to the Merger Order,
the subsidiary has been merged with the Holding Company) entered into an agreement to sell its School Business vertical {K-12 Business) to B&S Strategy Services Private
Limited (B&S) for a total consideration of Rs. 4,650 lacs comprising Rs. 600 lacs payable in cash and remaining Rs. 4,050 lacs by way of equity shares in B&S. Presently the
shareholding in B&S, is 8,817 cquity shares of Rs. 10 each, being 44.18%% of total equity of B&S. Further, an overdue amount of Rs. 416.18 lacs is recoverable from B&S
towards cash consideration as per the aforesaid agreement, with the amount now being considerably overdue despite repeated reminders to the B&S Management.

Further there were consistent delays on part of B&S Management in providing tequired tinancial updates and other important business information.

CLEIS had taken legal advice and initiated legal proceedings before the Honourable High Court, Delhi to protect its interests, including recovery of Rs. 416.18 lacs of the
cash consideration. A Section 9 petition on the matter of CLEIS vs B&S was heard by Delhi High Court and the Honourable Delhi High Court on June 22, 2020 appointed
a retired High Court Judge as an arbitrator to hear the dispute. The arbitrator has rejected the counter claim of the respondent (B&S Strategy Services Private Limited). The
Company has received the award in previous vear which is expected to be realised.

In the previous year, the net recoverable amounting to Rs. 361.18 lacs had been charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Although the Company has prudently written
ott the amount, it does not relinquish its right to pursue legal action against B&S Strategy Services Private Limited.

During the current year, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on August 02, 2023, has approved the buyback of fully paid-up equity shares of face
value of Rs. 5/- each from its shareholders / beneficial owners (Other than those who are promoters, members of the promoter group or persons in conrol) from the open
market through stock exchange mechanism for an aggregate amouar not exceeding Rs. 1,500 lacs (Indian Rupees One Thousand Five Hundred Lakhs only). The buyback
commenced on August 21, 2023,

The Company was able to complete the buyback of 10.49 lacs shares constituting 1.90% of the shares comprised in the pre-buyback paid-up equity share capital of the
Company. The amount returned to the sharcholders via buyback was Rs. 851.38 lacs includes share extinguished of Rs, 50.48 lacs and utilisation of securities premium of Rs.
799.10 lacs (excluding taxes and other related expenses) at an average price of Rs. 81.14 per equity share. The entity has incurred the total expense related to buy back is Rs.
211.46 lacs out of which buy back tax is Rs. 169.01 lacs and other expenses of Rs. 42.45 lacs.

As per the amendment to the SEBT (Buy-back of sccurities) regulations 2018, the buy-back needs to be completed within 66 working days from the commencement of the
buy-back event. Further as per amendment, the Company must utilize 75% of the amount earmarked for the buy-back. The regulations also mandate the Company to
deposit 2.5%0 of the total buy-back amount in the escrow account which will be released on completion of the event. In case of non-completion, the exchange may forfeit

the amount baring some exceptions.

The Company fell short of completing the targeted buy-back amount due to inadequate sell orders. The Company has appealed to the SEBI for non-forfeiture of the
amount. The Company has responded to the querics by the regulatory body and is awaiting final response. The Company is confident of getting the result in their favor.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 19, 2022, approved the Buyback of tully paid-up equity shares of face value of Rs. 5/- each from its
shareholders / bencficial owners (Other than those who are promoters, members of the promoter group or persons in control) from the open market through stock
exchange mechanism for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 1,000 Jacs (Indian Rupees One Thousand Lacs only).

The buyback started on May 27, 2022, and was concluded on July 29, 2022, The Company completed the buyback of 797,200 Equity shares at an average price of Rs 125.42,

The buyback tax and other related expenses of buyback have been adjusted against the Other Equity as per applicable sections of the Company’s Act 2013,

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on November 02, 2022, had approved and recommended 1 Bonus Issue of Equitv Shares in the Ratio of 1:] ie.
! (one) Equity Share of Rs. 5/- (Rs. Five only) each be issued for every | (one) existing Equity Share of Rs. 3/- (Rs. Five only) cach held by the Sharcholders of the
Company, as on the Record Date.

a. The Company has increased its Authorized Share capital from Rs. 2,728.00 lacs consisting of 54,560,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each to Rs. 4,000.00 lacs consisting of
80,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each.

b. The Shareholders of the Company approved the issue of Bonus Equity Shares via Postal Ballot on December 04, 2022.

¢. On December 19, 2022, the management commitree allotted 27,334,156 equity shares of face value Rs 5 each as bonus shares in proportion of one bonus equity share of
face value Rs. 5 cach for every one equity share of face value of Rs 5 each held on record date. The Bonus Shares were listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited w.e.f. December 30, 2022.

d. Earnings Per Sharc have been adjusted for all the respective periods as increased for issuance of bonus shares.

(This space bas been intentionally kf? blank)
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‘The Ministry of Corporate A Ffairs (MC.A) has prescribed a new requirement for companics under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (\ccounts) Rules, 2014
inscried by the Companics (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companics, which uses accounting softwace for mamuining 1ts books of account, shall us. only
such accounting software which hag a feature of recording avdir trail  F each and even transaction, creating an edit log of cach change made in the books o account
along with the dare when such changes were made and cosaring thar the audie trail cannot be disabled.

The Company

ses accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit wrail (edit log) facility and the same have operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions cecorded in the accounting software. However, the audit trail feature is not cnabled at database level for invoicing
software CL Zone (ERP) and accounting software Microso fr Dynamics Navision to log any direct data changes for users with certain privileged access rights. 1urther
there is no instance of audit trail fearure batng rampered with in respect of the accounting software where such festure is enablud,

Presently, the log is enabled at the application level and the privileoed access to Cl, Zone (RP) and accounting software Microsoft Dynamics Navision continues to be
1 s i i 4 }
restricted to lmited ser of users who necessarily require this access for maintenance and udministration of the damabase.

The management of rive Company has completed the process of sale of the property held at Greater NOID.A. The sale has been a roved by the Board Members and
8 pary ! P propert) PP 3

Audit committee in sts meeting held on May 19, 2022, The management has disclosed such Assets as "Disposal Group - Assets held for sale" as on the reporting date in

accordance with Ind AS-105 "Non-Currenr Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations".

The standalone fimancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024 were approved by board of directors on May U8, 2024,

Previoas year's figares have been segrouped / re -arranged as per the current vear's presentation for the parpose of comparability. “I'ne regrouping/re-arrangement has no
material impact on the standalone finanetal stuements,

As per report of even date.
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